
 

MACKENZIE COUNTY 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 
 

FEBRUARY 27, 2013 
 

10:00 A.M. 
 

COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
FORT VERMILION, AB 

 





  

MACKENZIE COUNTY 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 

 
Wednesday, February 27, 2013 

10:00 a.m. 
 

Fort Vermilion Council Chambers 
Fort Vermilion, Alberta 

 
AGENDA 

 
 

  Page 
CALL TO ORDER: 1. a) Call to Order 

 
 

 

AGENDA: 2. a) Adoption of Agenda 
 
 

 

ADOPTION OF 
PREVIOUS MINUTES: 

3. a) Minutes of the February 12, 2013 Regular  
  Council Meeting 
 
 

7 
 

DELEGATIONS: 4. a) Paul Noble – 1:00 p.m. 
 
 b)  
 
 

27 

GENERAL 
REPORTS: 
 

5. a) Municipal Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 
  – January 24, 2013 
 
 b)  
 
 c)  
 
 

31 

TENDERS: 
 

6. a) None 
 
 

 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 7. a) None 
 
 

 

COMMUNITY 
SERVICES: 
 

8. a) Fort Vermilion Bridge Campground Recreation  
  Area 
 
 b) Fire Accreditation 
 
 c)  
 

37 
 
 

45 



MACKENZIE COUNTY   PAGE 2 
REGULAR COUNCIL AGENDA 
February 27, 2013 
 

 d)  
 
 

ENVIRONMENTAL 
SERVICES: 

9. a)  
 
  b)  
 
 c)  
 
 

 

OPERATIONS: 10. a)  
 
  b)  
 
  c)  
 
 

 

PLANNING & 
DEVELOPMENT: 

11. a)  
 
 b)  
 
 c)  
 
 

 

CORPORATE 
SERVICES: 

12. a) Policy RESV018 Water Reserve Fund 
 
 b)  
 
 c)  
 
 

69 

ADMINISTRATION: 13. a) Election Bylaw 
 
 b) Northwest Fire Conference 
 
 c) Brownlee LLP Ladies Golf Tournament 
 
 d) Amalgamation of Housing Boards 
 
 e) Multi-Year Capital Infrastructure Plan - DRAFT 
 
 f)  
 
 g)  
 
 h)  
 
 

71 
 

81 
 

85 
 

87 
 

89 



MACKENZIE COUNTY   PAGE 3 
REGULAR COUNCIL AGENDA 
February 27, 2013 
 
INFORMATION / 
CORRESPONDENCE: 
 

14.  a) Information/Correspondence 113 

IN CAMERA 
SESSION: 

15. a) Legal 
• Legal Files Update 

 
 b) Labour 
 
 c) Land 

• Mustus Energy 
 
 

 

NEXT MEETING 
DATE: 

16. a) Regular Council Meeting 
  Tuesday, March 12, 2013 
  10:00 a.m. 
  Fort Vermilion Council Chambers 
 
 

 

ADJOURNMENT: 17. a) Adjournment  
 





Agenda Item # 3. a) 

Author: C. Gabriel Review by:  CAO  
 

 

MACKENZIE COUNTY 
 

REQUEST FOR DECISION 
 
 

Meeting: Regular Council Meeting 

Meeting Date: February 27, 2013 

Presented By: Joulia Whittleton, Chief Administrative Officer 

Title: Minutes of the February 12, 2013 Regular Council Meeting 

 
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL: 
 
Minutes of the February 12, 2013 Regular Council meeting are attached. 
 
 
 
OPTIONS & BENEFITS: 
 
 
 
 
 
COSTS & SOURCE OF FUNDING:  
 
 
 
 
COMMUNICATION: 
 
Approved council minutes are posted on the County website. 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
That the minutes of the February 12, 2013 Regular Council meeting be adopted as 
presented. 
 

7



8



 
________ 

________ 

MACKENZIE COUNTY 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 

 
Tuesday, February 12, 2013 

10:00 a.m. 
 

Fort Vermilion Council Chambers 
Fort Vermilion, Alberta 

 
 

PRESENT: Bill Neufeld 
Walter Sarapuk 
Jacquie Bateman 
Peter F. Braun 
Elmer Derksen 
Dicky Driedger 
John W. Driedger 
Odell Flett 
Eric Jorgensen 
Lisa Wardley 
 

Reeve 
Deputy Reeve 
Councillor  
Councillor  
Councillor  
Councillor  
Councillor  
Councillor  
Councillor  
Councillor 
 

REGRETS: 
 

  

ADMINISTRATION: 
 

 

Joulia Whittleton 
John Klassen 
 
William (Bill) Kostiw 
 
Byron Peters 
Carol Gabriel 

Chief Administrative Officer 
Director of Environmental Services & 
Operations 
Director of Infrastructure Development & 
Government Relations 
Director of Planning and Development 
Manager of Legislative and Support Services 
 

ALSO PRESENT: Members of the media and the public. 
 

Minutes of the Regular Council meeting for Mackenzie County held on February 12, 2013 
in the Fort Vermilion Council Chambers. 
 
CALL TO ORDER:  1. a) Call to Order 

 
 Reeve Neufeld called the meeting to order at 10:00 a.m. 

 
AGENDA: 
 

2. a) Adoption of Agenda 
 

MOTION 13-02-056 MOVED by Councillor Bateman 
 
That the agenda be approved with the following additions: 
 Move item 13. L) to the in-camera meeting 

9



MACKENZIE COUNTY  Page 2 of 18 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 
Tuesday, February 12, 2013 
 
 

 
________ 

________ 

 13. n) NCDC Symposium 
 15. a) Pets 
 
CARRIED 
 

ADOPTION OF 
PREVIOUS MINUTES: 
 

3. a) Minutes of the January 15, 2013 Regular   
 Council Meeting 

MOTION 13-02-057 
 

MOVED by Councillor Bateman 
 
That the minutes of the January 15, 2013 Regular Council 
meeting be adopted as presented. 
 
CARRIED 
 

GENERAL REPORTS: 5. a) CAO Report 
 

MOTION 13-02-058 MOVED by Councillor Wardley 
 
That the Policy PW039 open house locations be changed as 
follows: 

• April 5, 2013 – Rocky Lane Agricultural Society 
Community Hall 

• April 6, 2013 – La Crete Heritage Centre 
 
CARRIED 
 

MOTION 13-02-059 MOVED by Councillor Jorgensen 
 
That the CAO report for February 2013 be received for 
information. 
 
CARRIED 
 

 5. b) Municipal Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 
 

MOTION 13-02-060 MOVED by Councillor Wardley 
 
That the Municipal Planning Commission meeting minutes of 
December 6, 2012 and January 10, 2013 be received for 
information. 
 
CARRIED 
 

 5. c) Agricultural Service Board Meeting Minutes 
 

10



MACKENZIE COUNTY  Page 3 of 18 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 
Tuesday, February 12, 2013 
 
 

 
________ 

________ 

MOTION 13-02-061 MOVED by Deputy Reeve Sarapuk 
 
That the Agricultural Service Board meeting minutes of 
January 9, 2013 be received for information. 
 
CARRIED 
 

TENDERS: 6. a) None 
 

COMMUNITY 
SERVICES: 
 

8. a) Bylaw 886-13 Hamlet Residential Waste   
 Collection 

MOTION 13-02-062 
 

MOVED by Councillor Wardley 
 
That first reading be given to Bylaw 886-13 being the Hamlet 
Residential Waste Collection Bylaw for Mackenzie County. 
 
CARRIED 
 

MOTION 13-02-063 
 

MOVED by Councillor Braun 
 
That second reading be given to Bylaw 886-13 being the 
Hamlet Residential Waste Collection Bylaw for Mackenzie 
County. 
 
CARRIED 
 

MOTION 13-02-064 
Requires Unanimous 

MOVED by Councillor Derksen 
 
That consideration be given to proceed to third reading of 
Bylaw 886-13 being the Hamlet Residential Waste Collection 
Bylaw for Mackenzie County. 
 
CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 

MOTION 13-02-065 
 

MOVED by Councillor Braun 
 
That third reading be given to Bylaw 886-13 being the Hamlet 
Residential Waste Collection Bylaw for Mackenzie County. 
 
CARRIED 
 

 
 

8. b) Wadlin Lake Caretaker Bonus Structure Review 

MOTION 13-02-066 
 

MOVED by Councillor Braun 
 

11



MACKENZIE COUNTY  Page 4 of 18 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 
Tuesday, February 12, 2013 
 
 

 
________ 

________ 

That administration be authorized to include a bonus structure 
in the Wadlin Lake Caretaker Contract in which the caretaker 
will receive a 25% bonus of the total revenue collected 
provided they had a successful year end evaluation by the 
Director of Community Services & Operations and a positive 
recommendation by the Community Services Committee. 
 
CARRIED 
 

MOTION 13-02-067 
 

MOVED by Councillor J. Driedger 
 
That administration be instructed to draft a policy on 
administering bonuses for parks caretakers and bring it back 
for Council review. 
 
CARRIED 
 

ENVIRONMENTAL 
SERVICES: 
 

9. a) Water Meter Bypasses 

MOTION 13-02-068 
 

MOVED by Councillor Derksen 
 
That administration be authorized to proceed with reconfiguring 
the water meter bypasses that are currently in place due to 
freezing issues. 
 
CARRIED 
 

OPERATIONS: 10. a) Policy PW039 Rural Road, Access Construction  
 and Surface Water Management Policy 
 

MOTION 13-02-069 MOVED by Councillor Bateman 
 
That Policy PW039 Rural Road, Access Construction and 
Surface Water Management Policy be amended as presented. 
 
CARRIED 
 

 Reeve Neufeld recessed the meeting at 11:07 a.m. and 
reconvened the meeting at 11:22 a.m. 
 

MOTION 13-02-070 
 

MOVED by Councillor D. Driedger 
 
That the Mackenzie County Endeavor to Assist for Local Road 
Construction as identified in Policy PW039 be applicable to the 
road as per application. 

12



MACKENZIE COUNTY  Page 5 of 18 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 
Tuesday, February 12, 2013 
 
 

 
________ 

________ 

 
CARRIED 
 

 10. b) Ice Bridge - Ground Penetrating Radar (GPR) 
 

MOTION 13-02-071 
Requires 2/3 

MOVED by Councillor Derksen 
 
That the 2013 Capital Budget be amended to include an 
additional $15,000 for a Ground Penetrating Radar unit 
purchase with funding coming from the Roads Reserve. 
 
CARRIED 
 

PLANNING & 
DEVELOPMENT: 
 

11. a) Bylaw 884-13 Plan Cancellation for Consolidation  
 Purposes Plan 922 1976, Block 1, Lot 1 (Pt. of  
 SW 22-107-13-W5M) (Fort Vermilion Rural) 
 

MOTION 13-02-072 MOVED by Councillor J. Driedger 
 
That first reading be given to Bylaw 884-13, being a Plan 
Cancellation Bylaw to cancel and consolidate Plan 922 1976, 
Block 1, Lot 1 back into the quarter from which it was taken, 
subject to the public hearing input. 
 
CARRIED 
 

 11. b) Bylaw 885-13 Land Use Bylaw Amendment 
 Application to Rezone Part of Plan 962 1175, Block 
 1, Lot 5 (Part of SE 16-109-14-W5M) from 
 Agricultural District ‘A’ to Residential 
 Condominium District ‘RCD’. (Rocky Lane) 
 

MOTION 13-02-073 MOVED by Councillor Braun 
 
That first reading be given to Bylaw 885-13, being a Land Use 
Bylaw amendment to rezone Part of Plan 962 1175, Block 1, 
Lot 5 (Part of SE 16-109-14-W5M) from Agricultural (A) to 
Residential Condominium District (RCD), subject to public 
hearing input. 
 
DEFEATED 
 

 11. c) Industrial Area Structure Plans 
 

MOTION 13-02-074 
Requires 2/3 

MOVED by Councillor Wardley 
 

13



MACKENZIE COUNTY  Page 6 of 18 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 
Tuesday, February 12, 2013 
 
 

 
________ 

________ 

That Council authorizes a transfer of $65,000 from the 
Infrastructure Master Plans project to the Area Structure Plan 
project to undertake the supplementary Industrial Area 
Structure Plans. 
 
CARRIED 
 

MOTION 13-02-075 
 

MOVED by Councillor Braun 
 
That the scope of work for the Area Structure Plan contract 
with Scheffer Andrew be amended to include the creation of 
ASPs for the industrial areas as specified in Motions 13-01-
019, 13-01-020 and 13-01-021. 
 
CARRIED 
 

MOTION 13-02-076 
 

MOVED by Councillor Jorgensen 
 
That a letter be sent to the Town of High Level as presented, 
advising that the County is initiating preparation of an Industrial 
Area Structure Plan for an area within the Inter-municipal 
Development Plan as amended. 
 
CARRIED 
 

 11. d) Annual Business Licensing 
 

MOTION 13-02-077 
 

MOVED by Councillor Bateman 
 
That administration proceed with drafting a Business Licensing 
bylaw, incorporating key items as discussed. 
 
CARRIED 
 

 Reeve Neufeld recessed the meeting at 12:17 p.m. and 
reconvened the meeting at 1:05 p.m. 
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
 

7. a) Bylaw 879-12 Land Use Bylaw Amendment   
 Application to Rezone Plan 092 0458, Block 6,  
 Lot 1 (9006-91st Street) from Hamlet Country 
 Residential 2 (HCR2) to Public/Institutional (P)  
 (Hamlet of La Crete) 
 

14



MACKENZIE COUNTY  Page 7 of 18 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 
Tuesday, February 12, 2013 
 
 

 
________ 

________ 

 Reeve Neufeld called the public hearing for Bylaw 879-12 to 
order at 1:05 p.m. 
 
Reeve Neufeld asked if the public hearing for proposed Bylaw 
879-12 was properly advertised.  Byron Peters, Director of 
Planning and Development, answered that the bylaw was 
advertised in accordance with the Municipal Government Act. 
 
Reeve Neufeld asked the Development Authority to outline the 
proposed Land Use Bylaw Amendment.  Byron Peters, 
Director of Planning and Development, presented the 
Development Authority’s submission and indicated that first 
reading was given on December 11, 2012. 
 
Reeve Neufeld asked if Council has any questions of the 
proposed Land Use Bylaw Amendment.  Discussion was held 
regarding the required school zone, dust control (area is 
already included in the dust control program), and 
development permit (which will include fencing if required). 
 
Reeve Neufeld asked if any submissions were received in 
regards to proposed Bylaw 879-12.  No submissions were 
received. 
 
Reeve Neufeld asked if there was anyone present who would 
like to speak in regards to the proposed Bylaw 879-12.   There 
was no one present to speak to the proposed bylaw. 
 
Reeve Neufeld closed the public hearing for Bylaw 879-12 at 
1:10 p.m. 
 

MOTION 13-02-078 MOVED by Councillor Wardley 
 
That second reading be given to Bylaw 879-12, being a Land 
Use Bylaw amendment to rezone Plan 092 0458; Block 6; Lot 
1 from Hamlet Country Residential 2 (HCR2) to 
Public/Institutional (P). 
 
CARRIED 
 

MOTION 13-02-079 MOVED by Councillor Derksen 
 
That third reading be given to Bylaw 879-12, being a Land Use 
Bylaw amendment to rezone Plan 092 0458; Block 6; Lot 1 
from Hamlet Country Residential 2 (HCR2) to 
Public/Institutional (P). 

15



MACKENZIE COUNTY  Page 8 of 18 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 
Tuesday, February 12, 2013 
 
 

 
________ 

________ 

 
CARRIED 
 

 7. b) Bylaw 880-12 Road Closure lying between SE 1- 
 104-18-W5M and NE 36-103-18-W5M (Blue Hills) 
 

 Reeve Neufeld called the public hearing for Bylaw 880-12 to 
order at 1:10 p.m. 
 
Reeve Neufeld asked if the public hearing for proposed Bylaw 
880-12 was properly advertised.  Byron Peters, Director of 
Planning and Development, answered that the bylaw was 
advertised in accordance with the Municipal Government Act. 
 
Reeve Neufeld asked the Development Authority to outline the 
proposed Land Use Bylaw Amendment.  Byron Peters, 
Director of Planning and Development, presented the 
Development Authority’s submission and indicated that first 
reading was given on November 28, 2012. 
 
Reeve Neufeld asked if Council has any questions of the 
proposed Land Use Bylaw Amendment.  Clarification was 
requested on the closure area. 
 
Reeve Neufeld asked if any submissions were received in 
regards to proposed Bylaw 880-12.  Two written submissions 
were received.  One from adjacent landowner Bill Siemens and 
one from the Fort Vermilion School Division.   
 
Reeve Neufeld asked if there was anyone present who would 
like to speak in regards to the proposed Bylaw 880-12.  Dan 
Dyck was present to speak on behalf of the Fort Vermilion 
School Division to address concerns around traffic on the 
remaining road allowance and seepage concerns from the 
sewage lagoon. 
 
Reeve Neufeld closed the public hearing for Bylaw 880-12 at 
1:14 p.m. 
 

MOTION 13-02-080 MOVED by Councillor D. Driedger  
 
That administration move forward with Bylaw 880-12, being a 
Road Closure Bylaw for the closure of the most northerly 10 
meters of Government Road Allowance lying south of Part of 
SE 1-104-18-W5M, subject to public hearing input. 
 

16



MACKENZIE COUNTY  Page 9 of 18 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 
Tuesday, February 12, 2013 
 
 

 
________ 

________ 

CARRIED 
 

 7. c) Bylaw 882-12 Land Use Bylaw Amendment   
 Application to Rezone Part of NW 2-106-15-W5M  
 from Urban Fringe (UF) to Public/Institutional (P)  
 (Hamlet of La Crete) 
 

 Reeve Neufeld called the public hearing for Bylaw 882-12 to 
order at 1:21 p.m. 
 
Reeve Neufeld asked if the public hearing for proposed Bylaw 
882-12 was properly advertised.  Byron Peters, Director of 
Planning and Development, answered that the bylaw was 
advertised in accordance with the Municipal Government Act. 
 
Reeve Neufeld asked the Development Authority to outline the 
proposed Land Use Bylaw Amendment.  Byron Peters, 
Director of Planning and Development, presented the 
Development Authority’s submission and indicated that first 
reading was given on December 11, 2012. 
 
Reeve Neufeld asked if Council has any questions of the 
proposed Land Use Bylaw Amendment.  Will the proposed 
development affect the proposed school?  The development 
will be of low volume production and should not affect the 
school. 
 
Reeve Neufeld asked if any submissions were received in 
regards to proposed Bylaw 882-12.  No submissions were 
received. 
 
Reeve Neufeld asked if there was anyone present who would 
like to speak in regards to the proposed Bylaw 882-12.  There 
was no one present to speak to the proposed bylaw. 
 
Reeve Neufeld closed the public hearing for Bylaw 882-12 at 
1:24 p.m. 
 

MOTION 13-02-081 MOVED by Councillor Jorgensen 
 
That second reading be given to Bylaw 882-12, being a Land 
Use Bylaw amendment to rezone Part of NW 2-106-15-W5M 
from Urban Fringe (UF) to Public/Institutional (P) in the Hamlet 
of La Crete. 
 
CARRIED 

17



MACKENZIE COUNTY  Page 10 of 18 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 
Tuesday, February 12, 2013 
 
 

 
________ 

________ 

 
MOTION 13-02-082 MOVED by Councillor J. Driedger 

 
That third reading be given to Bylaw 882-12, being a Land Use 
Bylaw amendment to rezone Part of NW 2-106-15-W5M from 
Urban Fringe (UF) to Public/Institutional (P) in the Hamlet of La 
Crete. 
 
CARRIED 
 

DELEGATIONS: 4. a) S/Sgt. Shane Ramteemal, High Level RCMP  
 

MOTION 13-02-083 MOVED by Councillor Wardley 
 
That the RCMP report by S/Sgt. Shane Ramteemal be 
received for information. 
 
CARRIED 
 

 11. e) Economic Development Strategy 
 

MOTION 13-02-084 
 

MOVED by Councillor Wardley 
 
That the Economic Development Strategy be adopted as 
amended, and that it be a living document to be amended as 
priorities change and to be reviewed annually during the 
Strategic Priorities sessions. 
 
CARRIED 
 

 Alison Kilpatrick, Director of Corporate Services joined the 
meeting.  
 

CORPORATE 
SERVICES: 
 

12. a) RESV018 Water Reserve Fund 

MOTION 13-02-085 
 

MOVED by Councillor Wardley  
 
That Policy RESV018 Water Reserve Fund be adopted as 
presented. 
 
CARRIED 
 

 12. b) Financial Report – December 31, 2012 
 

MOTION 13-02-086 MOVED by Councillor Wardley 

18



MACKENZIE COUNTY  Page 11 of 18 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 
Tuesday, February 12, 2013 
 
 

 
________ 

________ 

 
That the financial reports for the period ended December 31, 
2012 be accepted for information. 
 
CARRIED 
 

 12. c) Additional Named Insured – La Crete Adult 
 Learning Council 
 

MOTION 13-02-087 MOVED by Councillor Flett 
 
That Council authorize the provision of insurance coverage to 
La Crete Community Adult Learning Council on a cost recovery 
basis through the Jubilee Insurance additional named insured 
program. 
 
CARRIED 
 

 Alison Kilpatrick, Director of Corporate Services left the 
meeting.  
 

 Reeve Neufeld recessed the meeting at 2:12 p.m. and 
reconvened the meeting 2:24 p.m. 
 

ADMINISTRATION: 
 

13. a) 2013 Strategic Priorities 

MOTION 13-02-088 MOVED by Councillor Bateman 
 
That the Mackenzie County Strategic Priorities Report be 
approved as presented. 
 
CARRIED 
 

 13. b) Regional Collaborative Governance Initiative – 
 Discussion Protocols 
 

MOTION 13-02-089 MOVED by Councillor Wardley  
 
That the Mackenzie Regional Collaborative Initiative 
Discussion Protocol be approved as presented and signed by 
all Councillors. 
 
CARRIED 
 

MOTION 13-02-090 MOVED by Councillor Braun 
 

19



MACKENZIE COUNTY  Page 12 of 18 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 
Tuesday, February 12, 2013 
 
 

 
________ 

________ 

That the Reeve and the Deputy Reeve be appointed to the 
Mackenzie Regional Collaborative Initiative. 
 
CARRIED 
 

 13. c) Vote on a Question - La Crete Outdoor 
 Swimming Pool Text and Notice 
 

MOTION 13-02-091 MOVED by Councillor Wardley 
 
That the La Crete Municipal Swimming Pool text for the notice 
of the Vote on a Question be approved as amended. 
 
CARRIED 
 

 13. d) Town of High Level Recreation Facility Task 
 Force 
 

MOTION 13-02-092 
 

MOVED by Councillor Wardley  
 
That Councillor Bateman be appointed to the Town of High 
Level Recreation Facility Task Force. 
 
CARRIED 
 

 Reeve Neufeld recessed the meeting at 3:23 p.m. and 
reconvened the meeting at 3:39 p.m. 
 

 13. e) Member at Large Appointments 
 

MOTION 13-02-093 MOVED by Councillor Wardley 
 
That Jerry Chomiak be appointed to the Assessment Review 
Board and the Subdivision & Development Appeal Board for 
the remainder of a one-year term ending October 2013. 
 
CARRIED 
 

MOTION 13-02-094 MOVED by Councillor Bateman 
 
That Danny Friesen be appointed to the Subdivision & 
Development Appeal Board for the remainder of a one-year 
term ending October 2013. 
 
CARRIED 
 

20



MACKENZIE COUNTY  Page 13 of 18 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 
Tuesday, February 12, 2013 
 
 

 
________ 

________ 

 13. f) Amalgamation of Housing Boards Working 
 Committee 
 

MOTION 13-02-095 MOVED by Deputy Reeve Sarapuk 
 
That the following Councillors be appointed to the 
Amalgamation of Housing Boards Implementation Committee: 

Councillor Flett 
Councillor Jorgensen 
Councillor Bateman 
Councillor J. Driedger 

 
CARRIED 
 

 13. g) Tats’uhkaa Ts’o Road – Rainbow Lake to Fort 
 Nelson 
 

MOTION 13-02-096 
Requires 2/3 

MOVED by Councillor Bateman 
 
That the County fund 25% of the $58,500 for the Phase 1 
consultation for the proposed road from Rainbow Lake to Fort 
Nelson with funding coming from the General Operating 
Reserve and that administration be authorized to seek financial 
assistance from affected municipalities and industry. 
 
CARRIED 
 

 13. h) Round Table Meeting with the Honorable Rona 
 Ambrose, Minister of Public Works & Government 
 Services, and Status of Women 
 

MOTION 13-02-097 MOVED by Councillor Wardley 
 
That Councillor Bateman be authorized to attend the round 
table meeting with the Honourable Rona Ambrose, Minister of 
Public Works & Government Services, and Status of Women to 
represent the County on February 20, 2013. 
 
CARRIED 
 

 13. i) Growing Rural Tourism Conference 
 

MOTION 13-02-098 MOVED by Councillor Wardley 
 
That Councillor Braun be authorized to attend the Growing 
Rural Tourism Conference in Camrose on April 8 – 10, 2013. 

21



MACKENZIE COUNTY  Page 14 of 18 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 
Tuesday, February 12, 2013 
 
 

 
________ 

________ 

 
CARRIED 
 

 13. j) April 9, 2013 Regular Council Meeting 
 

MOTION 13-02-099 MOVED by Councillor Braun 
 
That the April 9, 2013 regular council meeting be received for 
information. 
 
CARRIED 
 

 13. k) Local Road Bridge Program – AAMD&C Survey 
 

MOTION 13-02-100 MOVED by Councillor Wardley 
 
That administration be authorized to submit the Local Road 
Bridge Program survey to AAMD&C as presented. 
 
CARRIED 
 

INFORMATION/ 
CORRESPONDENCE: 
 

13. m) Memorandum of Understanding – Hazardous 
 Materials Unit 

MOTION 13-02-101 MOVED by Deputy Reeve Sarapuk 
 
That the Memorandum of Understanding with respect to the 
Regional Hazardous Materials Unit between the County and 
the Towns of High Level and Rainbow Lake be extended to 
December 31, 2013. 
 
CARRIED 
 

 13. m) NCDC Symposium (ADDITION) 
 

MOTION 13-02-102 
Requires Unanimous 

MOVED by Councillor Wardley 
 
That Councillors attending the Growing the North Conference 
be authorized to attend the NCDC Symposium in Spirit River 
on February 19, 2013. 
 
CARRIED 
 

INFORMATION/ 
CORRESPONDENCE: 
 

14. a) Information/Correspondence 

22



MACKENZIE COUNTY  Page 15 of 18 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 
Tuesday, February 12, 2013 
 
 

 
________ 

________ 

MOTION 13-02-103 MOVED by Councillor Wardley 
 
That the County sponsor the Fort Vermilion Winter Carnival as 
part of their 225th birthday celebration as the fireworks sponsor 
to a maximum amount of $1,000.00. 
 
CARRIED 
 

MOTION 13-02-104 MOVED by Councillor Wardley 
 
That the County sponsor the Agri-business Conference in 
Grande Prairie on March 14, 2013 in the amount of $500.00. 
 
CARRIED 
 

MOTION 13-02-105 
 

MOVED by Councillor Bateman 
 
That the information/correspondence items be accepted for 
information purposes. 
 
CARRIED 
 

IN CAMERA SESSION: 
 

 

MOTION 13-02-106 MOVED by Councillor Flett 
 
That Council move in-camera to discuss issues under the 
Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Regulations 
18 (1) at 4:21 p.m. 
 14. a) Legal 
 14. b) Labour 
 14. c) Land 
 
CARRIED 
 

MOTION 13-02-107 MOVED by Councillor D. Driedger 
 
That Council move out of camera at 5:44 p.m. 
 
CARRIED 
 

 15. a) Legal – Regional Collaboration Governance 
 Initiative 
 

MOTION 13-02-108 MOVED by Deputy Reeve Sarapuk 
 

23



MACKENZIE COUNTY  Page 16 of 18 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 
Tuesday, February 12, 2013 
 
 

 
________ 

________ 

That the January 18 & 19, 2013 Regional Collaborative 
Governance confidential meeting notes be accepted for 
information. 
 
CARRIED 
 

 15. a) Legal – Town of High Level Regional Service 
 Sharing Agreement Review Update 
 

MOTION 13-02-109 MOVED by Councillor J. Driedger 
 
That the Town of High Level Regional Service Sharing 
Agreement update be received for information. 
 
CARRIED 
 

 15. a) Legal – Pets (ADDITION) 
 

MOTION 13-02-110 MOVED by Councillor Wardley 
 
That item 15. a) Pets be deleted from the agenda. 
 
CARRIED 
 

 
 

15. b) Labour  
 

 
 

15. c) Land – Mustus Energy 
 

MOTION 13-02-111 MOVED by Councillor Derksen 
 
That Mustus Energy be tabled to the next meeting. 
 
CARRIED 
 

 
 

15. c) Land – G7 
 

MOTION 13-02-112 MOVED by Councillor Bateman 
 
That the Generating for Seven Generations (G7) be received 
for information. 
 
CARRIED 
 

 
 

15. c) Land – Crown Land Negotiations 
 

 13. l) Crown Land Lease Agreement for the Fort 

24



MACKENZIE COUNTY  Page 17 of 18 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 
Tuesday, February 12, 2013 
 
 

 
________ 

________ 

 Vermilion Agricultural Research Station 
 

MOTION 13-02-113 
Requires 2/3 

MOVED by Councillor D. Driedger 
 
That the 2013 operating budget be amended to include 
$50,000 to be taken from the general operating reserve to 
cover the land lease and utility costs for the Fort Vermilion 
Agriculture Research Station. 
 
CARRIED 
 

MOTION 13-02-114 MOVED by Councillor Bateman 
 
That administration be authorized to enter into a one-year 
lease agreement with the Federal Government for the Fort 
Vermilion Agricultural Research Station. 
 
CARRIED 
 

MOTION 13-02-115 MOVED by Councillor Bateman 
 
That the County enters into an agreement with Mackenzie 
Applied Research Association for the Federal Agriculture Site 
located in the Hamlet of Fort Vermilion and that the term 
coincides with the lease between the County and the Federal 
Government. 
 
CARRIED 
 

NEXT MEETING 
DATE: 
 

16. a)  Regular Council Meeting 
  Wednesday, February 27, 2013 
  10:00 a.m. 
  Fort Vermilion Council Chambers 
 

ADJOURNMENT: 17. a) Adjournment 
 

MOTION 13-02-116 
 

MOVED by Councillor Flett 
 
That the council meeting be adjourned at 5:50 p.m. 
 
CARRIED 
 

These minutes will be presented to Council for approval on February 27, 2013. 
 
 
 

25



MACKENZIE COUNTY  Page 18 of 18 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 
Tuesday, February 12, 2013 
 
 

 
________ 

________ 

 
   
Bill Neufeld 
Reeve 

 Joulia Whittleton 
Chief Administrative Officer 

 

26



Agenda Item # 4. a) 

Author: C. Gabriel Review by:  CAO  
 

 

MACKENZIE COUNTY 
 

REQUEST FOR DECISION 
 
 

Meeting: Regular Council Meeting 

Meeting Date: February 27, 2013 

Presented By: Joulia Whittleton, Chief Administrative Officer 

Title: DELEGATION 
Paul Noble – 1:00 p.m. 

 
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL: 
 
See attached background information. 
 
 
 
OPTIONS & BENEFITS: 
 
 
 
 
 
COSTS & SOURCE OF FUNDING:  
 
 
 
 
COMMUNICATION: 
 
N/A 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
To be determined following delegation presentation. 
 

27



28



29



30



Agenda Item # 5. a) 
 

Author: B. Peters Review Date:  CAO  
 

 

MACKENZIE COUNTY 
 

REQUEST FOR DECISION 
 
 

Meeting: Regular Council Meeting 

Meeting Date: February 27, 2013 

Presented By: Byron Peters, Director of Planning & Development 

Title: Municipal Planning Commission Meeting Minutes – January 24, 
2013 

 
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL: 
 
Information item. The adopted minutes of the January 24, 2013 meeting are attached. 
 
 
 
OPTIONS & BENEFITS: 
 
 
 
 
COSTS & SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
 
 
 
COMMUNICATION: 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:   
 
That the Municipal Planning Commission meeting minutes of January 24, 2013 be 
received for information. 
 

31



Mackenzie County 
Municipal Planning Commission Meeting 

 
Mackenzie County Office 

Fort Vermilion, AB 
 

Thursday, January 24, 2013 @ 10:00 a.m. 
 
 

PRESENT Jack Eccles  Chair, MPC Member 
 Wally Schroeder  Vice-Chair, MPC Member 

 Jacquie Bateman Councilor, MPC Member  
 Elmer Derksen Councilor, MPC Member 
 Beth Kappelar MPC Member 

 
ADMINISTRATION Byron Peters Director of Planning & Development 
 Liane Lambert  Development Officer 
 Tamara Friesen  Administrative Assistant 
 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
Jack Eccles called the meeting to order at 10:00 a.m. 

 
 

2. ADOPTION OF AGENDA 
 
MOTION 13-10 MOVED by Beth Kappelar 
 

That the agenda be adopted as presented. 
 

CARRIED 
 
 

3. MINUTES 
 

a) Adoption of Minutes 
 

MOTION 13-11 MOVED by Jacquie Bateman 
 

That the minutes of the January 10, 2013 Municipal Planning 
Commission meeting be adopted as presented. 
 
CARRIED 

 
b) Business Arising from Previous Minutes  

 
There was no business arising from previous minutes. 

32



Municipal Planning Commission Minutes 
January 24, 2013 
Page 2 of 5 
 

  

4. DEVELOPMENT PERMIT 
 

a) Development Permit Application 01-DP-13 
Sanjel Corporation; (Dry Cement Storage Skid) 
Plan 022 4186, Block 4, Lot 7 

 
MOTION 13-12 MOVED by Wally Schroeder 
 

That Development Permit 01-DP-13 on Plan 022 4186, Block 4, Lot 
7 in the name of Sanjel Corporation be TABLED until the next MPC 
meeting. 

 
CARRIED 

 
5. SUBDIVISION 

 
a) Subdivision Application 55-SUB-12 

SW 7-106-15-W5M; La Crete Rural 
Peter W. & Helena Peters (Willie Wiebe, Agent) 

 
MOTION 13-13 MOVED by Elmer Derksen 
 

That Subdivision Application 55-SUB-12 in the name of Peter W. 
Peters and Helena Peters on the SW 7-106-15-W5M be 
APPROVED with the following conditions: 

 
1. This approval is for a single lot subdivision, 7.24 acres (2.93 

hectares) in size. 
 
2. Applicant/developer shall enter into a Development Agreement 

with the Mackenzie County which shall contain, but is not limited 
to: 
 
a) Prior to any development on the proposed subdivision, the      

developer shall obtain a development permit from the   
Municipality. 

 
b) Provision of access to the subdivision and the balance of the 

lands in accordance with Mackenzie County standards at the 
developer’s expense.  

 
c) The existing pumpout sewer system shall be removed 

and replaced with a sewage disposals system that 
conforms to and fits the setback requirements of the 
Alberta Private Sewage Systems Standard of Practice 
2009. 

 

33



Municipal Planning Commission Minutes 
January 24, 2013 
Page 3 of 5 
 

  

d) Provision of a storm water management plan. Contact 
Planning and Development staff at 780-928-3983 to 
discuss the requirements for your subdivision.  

 
e) Any outstanding property taxes are to be paid on the land 

proposed to be subdivided prior to registration. 
 
f) Provision of utility right-of-way as required by ATCO Electric, 

Telus and Northern Lights Gas and others.  
 
g) Provision of and negotiations for utility rights-of-way and/or 

easements as required by utility companies. The Developer 
shall be responsible for any line relocation or correction costs 
that occur as a result of this development. Responses from 
utilities companies are shown in Schedule “C” hereto attached.  

 
CARRIED 
 
b) Subdivision Application 01-SUB-13 

Part of NW 13-105-15-W5M; La Crete Rural 
Peter & Margaret Froese 

 
MOTION 13-14 MOVED by Jacquie Bateman 

 
That Subdivision Application 01-SUB-13 in the name of Peter 
Froese and Margaret Froese on Part of NW 13-105-15-W5M be 
APPROVED with the following conditions: 

 
1. This approval is for a single lot subdivision, 10 acres (4.04 

hectares) in size. 
 

2. Applicant/developer shall enter into a Development Agreement 
with the Mackenzie County which shall contain, but is not limited 
to: 

 
a) Prior to any development on the proposed subdivision, the 

developer shall obtain a development permit from the 
Municipality. 
 

b) Provision of access to the subdivision and the balance 
of the lands is to be provided by means of a 30 meter 
service road right-of-way across the highway frontage of 
the proposed parcel for a distance of 30 meters 
beginning at the NW limit of the proposed parcel. 
Alberta Transportation requires the service road 
dedication to be by Plan of Survey and at no cost to the 
department.  
 

34



Municipal Planning Commission Minutes 
January 24, 2013 
Page 4 of 5 
 

  

c) Provision of a storm water management plan. Contact 
Planning and Development staff at 780-928-3983 to 
discuss the requirements for your subdivision.  
 

d) Provision of municipal reserve in the form of money in lieu of 
land. Specific amount is based on 10% of the subject land 
and on the current market value. The current market value 
for this property is $3,500.00 per acre. Municipal reserve is 
charged at 10%, which is $350.00 per subdivided acre. 10 
acres times $350.00 equals $3,500.00 
 

e) All sewage disposals shall conform to the Alberta Private 
Sewage Systems Standard of Practice 2009.  
 

f) Any outstanding property taxes are to be paid on the land 
proposed to be subdivided prior to registration. 
 

g) Provision of utility right-of-way as required by ATCO Electric, 
Telus and Northern Lights Gas and others.  
 

h) Provision of and negotiations for utility rights-of-way and/or 
easements as required by utility companies. The Developer 
shall be responsible for any line relocation or correction 
costs that occur as a result of this development. Responses 
from utilities companies are shown in Schedule “C” hereto 
attached. 

 
CARRIED 
 

 
6. MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS 

 
a) Bylaw No.__.13 

Plan Cancellation for Consolidation Purposes 
  Plan 922 1976, Block 1, Lot 1 (Pt. of SW 22-107-13-W5M) 
  (Fort Vermilion Rural) 
 

MOTION 13-15 MOVED by Beth Kappelar 
 

That the Municipal Planning Commission recommendation to 
Council be to approve Bylaw 8__-13, being a Plan Cancellation 
Bylaw to cancel and consolidate Plan 992 1976, Block 1, Lot 1 back 
into the quarter from which it was taken, subject to the public 
hearing input. 
 
CARRIED 
 
b) Action List 
 

35



Municipal Planning Commission Minutes 
January 24, 2013 
Page 5 of 5 
 

  

The Action List of January 24, 2013 was reviewed. 
 

7. IN CAMERA 
 

There were no items to discuss in camera. 
 

8. NEXT MEETING DATES 
 

Municipal Planning Commission meeting dates are scheduled as 
follows: 

 
 February 07, 2013 at 10:00 a.m. in La Crete 
 February 25, 2013 at 2:00 p.m. in Fort Vermilion (Changed 

from Feb 21, 2013) 
 March 14, 2013 at 10:00 a.m. in La Crete 
 March 28, 2013 at 10:00 a.m. in Fort Vermilion 

 
 

9. ADJOURNMENT 
 

Wally Schroeder adjourned the Municipal Planning Commission 
meeting at 10:43 a.m. 
 

 
These minutes were adopted this 7th day of February, 2013. 

 
 
 
   ________________________________ 
   Jack Eccles, Chair 

36



Agenda Item # 8. a) 
 

 
Author: bl Reviewed by:  CAO YW 
 

 

MACKENZIE COUNTY 
 

REQUEST FOR DECISION 
 
 

Meeting: Regular Council Meeting 

Meeting Date: February 27, 2013 

Presented By: Ron Pelensky,  Director of Community Services & Operations 

Title:  Fort Vermilion Bridge Campground Recreation Area 

 
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL: 
 
The current lease with Alberta Parks and Recreation will expire March 31, 2013 and 
requires renewing if we want to continue operating the recreation site. In addition to this 
administration has been working toward expanding the area through obtaining an 
additional lease with Alberta Environment & Sustainable Resource Development 
(ESRD). 
 
It was discussed that it would be easier to manage the site if there was only one 
government agent holding the lease therefore the application should be for the entire 
area (existing and future) and it should be through ESRD.  
 
The Community Services Committee passed a motion recommending Council 
approve the three year extension at Bridge Campsite with Alberta Parks and 
apply for REC lease with ESRD on both parcels and work on divestiture of the 
existing lease with Alberta Parks   
 
The Community Services Committee passed a second motion recommending to 
Council to have an open house for planning discussions on the expansion of 
Bridge Campsite recreation area. 
 
The site has 9 camping areas, a water well, a sheltered cookhouse, garbage cans, 
supplied firewood, swings and two outhouses. Currently there is not a caretaker and is 
maintained by the Fort Vermillion Public Works Department. There is no charge to the 
public for using it. 
 

37



Author: bl Reviewed by:  CAO YW 
 

OPTIONS & BENEFITS: 
 
Currently the locals have been utilizing the site and would continue to benefit if the 
recreation lease was renewed.  Improving the site will attract new users.  If the site was 
expanded to include services such as power, water and access to the river it could 
serve as a larger benefit to local residents and tourists.  
 
There are two options in the expansion of the site: 
 

1. Continue with 3 year lease through Alberta Parks and apply for  a lease that 
encompasses both existing and future area and when the lease with ESRD is 
approved cancel the one with Alberta parks 
(the benefit is you would only have one government department to deal with) 
 

2. Have two separate leases: continue with 3 year lease through Alberta Parks for 
the existing portion and sign an additional lease with ESRD for the future area. 
(the benefit is there is good possibility you wouldn’t have to complete another 
legal survey for the application and you would have the possibility of getting 
funds from Alberta Parks if they had additional funds) 

 
 
COSTS & SOURCE OF FUNDING:  
 
There is no cost to renew the lease with AB Parks as this application/approval is free 
also there are no additional monies needed for the maintenance of the site at its current 
level as this is in our operation budget.  
 
If council requests administration to continue to pursue obtaining a lease on the 
expanded area and plan on expansion of the recreation site there would be additional 
costs for surveying, public meetings, administration time and construction costs in the 
future. 
 
 
COMMUNICATION: 
 
If the motion is passed requesting administration to hold an open house to discuss the 
planning options on expanding the campsite, administration would advertise the open 
house in the newspaper and the Big Deal Bulletin. 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
MOTION 1 
 
That administration be authorized to enter into a three (3) year lease with Alberta Parks 
and Recreation for operation and maintaining of the Fort Vermilion Bridge Campground 
recreational area. 

38



Author: bl Reviewed by:  CAO YW 
 

 
MOTION 2 
 
That administration continue to work towards expanding the Fort Vermilion Bridge 
Campground recreational area by applying for a lease with ESRD that encompasses 
both existing and future area. 
 
MOTION 3 
 
That an open house be held for the public to provide input on the future expansion of 
the Fort Vermilion Bridge Campground recreational area. 
 
 
 

39



40



CADASTRAL / ORTHOPHOTO

NOT TO SCALE
MackenzLe County

41



CD ‘-tr.1tz4U tr ~,

C

C

I

CD

t-l
CD

CD

CD
I-.

t
C

42



1entC~np~ound Lands

1~ 4oposed Lease Extension

N
j Alberta Transportation Land V
I

/
Lease in questi
Plan 4553PX

-
a— V 43



Bridge
Campground

ATV TraiL

LII I

4’

‘4a
z0t

U’ G
‘I

WaLk Way

44



Agenda Item # 8. b) 
 

 
Author: R. Pelensky Reviewed by:  CAO YW 
 

 

MACKENZIE COUNTY 
 

REQUEST FOR DECISION 
 
 

Meeting: Regular Council Meeting 

Meeting Date: February 27, 2013 

Presented By: Ron Pelensky, Director of Community Services & Operations 

Title:  Fire Accreditation  

 
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL: 
 
The Mackenzie County is an accredited municipality in fire safety discipline. As part of 
being an accredited municipality you must have a Fire Safety Codes Officer.  At the 
present time the County does not have a Fire Safety Codes Officer.  We do have our 
Fire Chief and Deputy Chief working towards achieving this, however, the completion of 
the program is a couple years away.  In 2012, we hired a Fire and Safety Coordinator 
and he was also working towards becoming a Fire Safety Codes Officer, however, he 
resigned from his position in January 2013. 
 
If the County does not have a Fire Safety Codes Officer it will lose its accredited status 
in fire safety discipline.  If the accreditation is lost then the Alberta Emergency 
Management Agency takes responsibility for items such as : 

• Occupancy permits (i.e. arenas, halls, hotels etc.) 
• Fire inspections on buildings such as private schools, daycares and other 

large complex’s 
• Fire investigations 

 
 
OPTIONS & BENEFITS: 
 
Option 1 
Not have a fire codes officer and have the County lose their accredited status in fire 
safety discipline. 

45



Author: R. Pelensky Reviewed by:  CAO  
 

 
Option 2 
That Council ask administration to negotiate with the Town of High Level or another 
municipality to complete the duties of a Fire Safety Codes Officer and if not successful 
to hire a consultant. 
 
Option 3 
That Council ask administration to hire a consultant to complete the duties of a Fire 
Safety Codes Officer for an interim till our fire department staff are trained. 
 
Option 4 
That Council ask administration to hire an employee that is trained as a Fire Safety 
Codes Officer. 
 
 
COSTS & SOURCE OF FUNDING:  
 
There are costs involved in either option however our overall budget shouldn’t be 
impacted as we have dollars set aside in the vacant position. 
 
 
COMMUNICATION:  
N/A 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
That administration be authorized to negotiate with the Town of High Level or another 
municipality to complete the duties of a Fire Safety Codes Officer and if not successful 
to hire a consultant. 
 
 

46



Fire Discipline Agencies
Discipline Organization City

Fire 1016987 Alberta Inc. O/A SIID Consulting GRANDE PRAIRIE
Fire A. S. Roach Fire Services Ltd. STONY PLAIN
Fire Acceptable Fire Inspections and Training Ltd. SHERWOOD PARK
Fire All Fire Investigations Inc. BLAIRMORE
Fire City of Edmonton Community Services Dept Fire Rescue Services/Fire Prevention EDMONTON
Fire City of Lethbridge Fire Department & Investigations Agency LETHBRDIGE
Fire Fire Spectrum Incorporated CALGARY
Fire Grande Prairie Fire Department - Agency GRANDE PRAIRE
Fire IJD Inspections Ltd. RED DEER
Fire Leduc County NISKU
Fire Medicine Hat Fire Department MEDICINE HAT
Fire Palliser Regional Municipal Services DRUMHELLER
Fire Park Enterprises LETHBRIDGE
Fire Petroleum Tank Management Association of Alberta EDMONTON
Fire SCM Risk Management Services Inc BURNABY
Fire Superior Safety Codes Inc. EDMONTON
Fire The Inspections Group Inc. EDMONTON
Fire Traffic-Air Inc o/a FirePower Fire Investigation Training & Consulting SPRUCE GROVE
Fire Westcan Fire Safety Services CALGARY

47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



Agenda Item # 12. a) 
 

Authors: A. Kilpatrick Review Date: Feb. 14, 2013 CAO YW 
 

 

MACKENZIE COUNTY 
 

REQUEST FOR DECISION 
 
 

Meeting: Regular Council Meeting 

Meeting Date: February 27, 2013 

Presented By: Alison Kilpatrick, Director of Corporate Services 

Title:  Policy RESV018 Water Reserve Fund  

 
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL: 
 
On February 12, 2013, Council approved Policy RESV018 Water Reserve Fund by 
Motion 13-02-085. 
 
OPTIONS & BENEFITS: 
 
Since the County collected some funds for the rural water line connections in 2012 and 
the new policy is in effect as of February 12, 2013, administration requests a motion to 
transfer 2012 surplus funds from these connections to the existing General Capital 
Reserve as of December 31, 2012 with a subsequent (February 12, 2013) inter-fund 
transfer to the Water Reserve Fund as established by Policy RESV018.  
 
COSTS & SOURCE OF FUNDING:  
 
2012 Operating Budget. 
 
COMMUNICATION: 
 
N/A 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: (requires 2/3) 
 
That administration be authorized to transfer the surplus funds from the 2012 rural water 
line connections to the General Capital Reserve as of December 31, 2012, with a 
subsequent inter-fund transfer to the Water Reserve Fund established by Policy 
RESV018 as of February 12, 2013. 

69



70



Agenda Item # 13. a) 
 

Author: C. Gabriel Reviewed by:  CAO  
 

 

MACKENZIE COUNTY 
 

REQUEST FOR DIRECTION 
 
 

Meeting: Regular Council Meeting 

Meeting Date: February 27, 2013 

Presented By: Joulia Whittleton, Chief Administrative Office 

Title:  Election Bylaw 

 
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL: 
 
At the January 15, 2013 council meeting, council made the following motion: 
 

The administration review the required election bylaws as a result of the recent 
changes to the Local Authorities Election Act. 

 
The Local Authorities Election Act (LAEA) provides municipalities with the option of 
establishing certain election procedures they deem appropriate. 
 
Under the LAEA, a municipality may pass bylaws as follows: 
 

 Deadline Administrative 
Comments 

Section 11 (2) – Election Day 
Provide that the election day in the local 
jurisdiction be held on the Saturday 
immediately preceding the 3rd Monday in 
October. 
 

Prior to June 30th  

Section 28 (2) – Nominations 
Provide that the returning officer: 

• Receive nominations earlier than 
10 am 

• Establish additional locations to 
receive nominations. 

 

Prior to June 30th 
 

Recommended due to the 
municipalities large 
geographical area. 
 
Currently in place under 
Bylaw 635/07 

Section 29 (1) – Deposit 
Requiring a deposit with nomination 
papers. 
 

Not fewer than 30 
days before 
nomination day 

 

71



Author: C. Gabriel Reviewed by:  CAO YW 
 

Section 33 (1) – Death of a Candidate 
Provide for the discontinuation of an 
election for an office for which a candidate 
has died. 
 

Prior to Nomination 
Day 

Recommended “just in 
case” 

Section 43 (3) – Contents of Ballot 
Provide for ballots to be printed in lots. 
 

2 months before 
election 

Not recommended. 

Section 46 (2) – Voting Hours 
Allowing voting stations to open prior to 
10 am. 
 

Prior to June 30th  Not recommended. 

Section 50 (1) & 49 (1) – List of Electors 
Authorize the compiling of a voters list. 
 

No timeline 
established 

Not recommended.  Not 
being used by majority of 
municipalities. 
 

Section 53 (3) – Proof of Elector 
Eligibility 
Provide for additional types of 
identification required to be produced in 
the general election. 

No later than 6 
months prior to 
nomination day – 
however this timeline 
has been changed to 
4 months for the 2013 
election under 
Ministerial Order 
L:011/13. 
 

Not recommended.   
 
In addition to the current 
identification requirements 
voters still need to 
complete the Voting 
Register declaring their 
eligibility to vote. 
 

Section 84 (1) – Voting Machines 
Provide for the taking of votes by means 
of voting machines, vote recorders, or 
automated voting systems. 
 

No timeline 
established 
 

Not recommended. 

Section 160 – Modified Voting System 
Designating the locations of voting 
stations.  Allows for the location of more 
than one voting station for a voting 
subdivision. 
 

No timeline 
established. 

Currently in place under 
Bylaw 274/01. 
 
Recommend 
consolidating with Election 
Bylaw 635/07. 
 

 
The following attachments have been included for your information: 

• Municipal Affairs Information Bulleting December 2012 – Amendments to the 
Local Authorities Election Act 

• Bylaw 274/01 Modified Voting Procedure 
• Bylaw 635/07 Election Bylaw 
• Form 8 – Voting Register 
• Ministerial Order L:011/13 

 

72



Author: C. Gabriel Reviewed by:  CAO YW 
 

 
OPTIONS & BENEFITS: 
 
 
 
 
COSTS & SOURCE OF FUNDING:  
 
N/A 
 
 
COMMUNICATION: 
 
N/A 
 
 
REQUEST FOR DIRECTION: 
 
That Council provide administration with feedback on the changes to be implemented in 
the Election Bylaw.  An amended Bylaw will then be brought back to the March 12, 2013 
council meeting. 
 
 

73



Municipal Affairs 
 

Information Bulletin 

 
Local Government Services Division    Municipal Services Branch 

Phone: (780) 427-2225 . Fax: (780) 420-1016 . E Mail: lgsmail@gov.ab.ca 
17TH FLOOR COMMERCE PLACE 10155 – 102 STREET EDMONTON, ALBERTA T5J 4L4.   INTERNET:HTTP:www.municipalaffairs.gov.ab.ca/ms 

 

 Number 07/12 Date:  December 2012 
_______________________________________________________________________ 

 
Amendments to the Local Authorities Election Act 

 
As you know, over the past year, Municipal Affairs led a review of the Local Authorities Election Act 
(LAEA), which included a consultation in the summer of 2012.  This review resulted in a number of 
amendments to the LAEA that were included in Bill 7 - the Election Accountability Amendment Act.  
Bill 7 is a combination of amendments to both the Election Act (provincial) and the Local 
Authorities Election Act (municipal).  This Bill was proclaimed on December 10, 2012.  The most 
significant amendments to the LAEA include: 
 
Section 10(1) – General Term of Office 

The term of office for local authorities (municipal councillors and school board trustees) 
will change to four years.  This change will come into effect for elections following the 
October 2013 general election.  Candidates running in the October 2013 election are running 
for a four year term. 

Section 22(1.2) - Ineligibility 

Municipal candidates will not be eligible for nomination if they have not met the 
campaign reporting requirements from a previous election campaign.  This change will 
apply to all campaign periods beginning on or after January 1, 2014.  The change will not apply 
to campaign reporting for by elections in 2013 or for the 2013 general election. 

Section 28(3.01) – Nominations 

Returning officers will be required to refuse a candidate’s nomination form if it has not 
been signed by the required number of eligible electors.  This change came into force on 
December 10, 2012.  

Section 53 – Proof of Elector Eligibility 

Voter identification will be required for local authority elections where a list of electors is 
not prepared.  The identification requirement sets a uniform standard of one piece of picture 
identification or one piece of identification authorized by the Chief Electoral Officer under the 
Election Act as indicated for the purposes of section 95(1)(a)(ii) of that Act that establishes the 
elector’s name and current address (copy attached).  Local authorities may also pass a bylaw 
no later than six months prior to nomination day which provides the opportunity to supplement 
the number and types of identification required to allow a person to vote.  This change came 
into force on December 10, 2012. 

Section 147.21(1) – Registration of Candidates 

Potential municipal candidates will be required to register with the municipality before 
they accept any campaign contributions prior to nomination day.  Potential candidates will 
be able to register at any time, and the form of the registration process will be at the discretion 
of each local authority.  This change will apply to campaign periods beginning on or after 
January 1, 2014.  This change will not apply to campaigns for by-elections in 2013 or for the 
2013 general election. 

…/2 

 

 

74



2 
 

Section 147.4(1.1) – Campaign Disclosure Statements 

Municipal candidates will be required to donate all surplus municipal campaign funds, 
including amounts of $500 or less, to a charity or the municipality if they do not run in 
the next general election.  This change came into force on December 10, 2012.  Compliance 
with this requirement is due within 6 months after the date of the next general election. 

Section 147.4(1.2) – Campaign Disclosure Statements 

Municipal candidates will be required to clear campaign deficits if they are not running 
in the next general election.  This change came into force on December 10, 2012.  
Compliance with this requirement is due within 6 months after the date of the next general 
election. 

Bill 7 also contains a number of technical amendments to the LAEA that clarify intent and ensure 
consistency with the Election Act and the Election Finances and Contributions Disclosure Act.  
Sections 2(4) and 3(4) section 118 has been added to clarify that a bylaw made by an elected 
authority that is responsible for the conduct of an election under a joint election agreement with 
respect to allowable election expenses under section 118 does not apply to the other elected 
authority that has entered into the agreement. 
Section 16(1) An official agent is no longer required to take an official oath. 
Section 22 A number of changes have been made to section 22 to clarify that a person who is an 
employee of a municipality, school district or division, charter school, or private school and who 
wishes to be nominated as a candidate for an election to be held for that respective municipality or 
school board is entitled to take a leave of absence without pay. 
Section 54(1.1) has been added to clarify that an objection may only be made at the time the 
person makes the statement. 
Section 68.1(1) clarified that the official agent information must be included on the nomination 
form and subsection (1.1) requires the candidate to notify the returning officer if a new official agent 
is appointed. 
Section 69(5) has been clarified to ensure that the designated place or places at the voting station 
allow the candidate, official agent or scrutineer to observe a person making a statement. 
Section 77.1 now allows the resolution for special ballot to be passed at any time prior to 
nomination day and allows an elector to request a special ballot from the day after the resolution is 
passed.  Notification to the Minister of the resolution must be made by nomination day. 
Section 77.2 has been updated to align the special ballot provisions with the changes to Section 
53 – Proof of Elector Eligibility, and to make consistent reference to “elector” rather than “voter”. 
Section 98(1) has been updated to clarify that a recount can be made for one or more voting 
stations.  

Section 147.3(1) has been updated to allow a candidate to open a campaign account at a financial 
institution in their own name. 
Section 147.5(1) and 147.7(2) will apply on or after December 1, 2015 to all surplus amounts, 
including amounts of $500 or less. 
Section 147.5(4) The meaning of a registered charity has been updated. 
Section 147.6 This transitional provision has been removed as it no longer applies. 
Sections 147.92(1), 147.5, 147.7(2) and (3), and 147.91(b) replace Ministerial Order L:200/11 
which defers the application of these provisions to campaign funds on or after December 1, 2015. 
It is suggested that you acquire the new Local Authorities Election Act as soon as Queens 
Printer has it available to help with election planning and processes. 

Returning Officer Workshops will be offered in the Spring.  

75



BYLAW NO. 274/01  
 

BEING A BY-LAW OF THE 
MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF MACKENZIE NO. 23 

IN THE PROVINCE OF ALBERTA 
 

TO ADOPT A MODIFIED VOTING PROCEDURE 
 
 

PURSUANT to the provisions of the Local Authorities Election Act, Statutes of 
Alberta, 1983 and amendments thereto, and under the authority of Ministerial Order 
number L:141/01, now 
 
THEREFORE, the Council of the Municipal District of Mackenzie No. 23, in the 
Province of Alberta, enacts as follows: 
 
 
1. The Municipal District of Mackenzie No. 23 hereby adopts the modified 

system of conducting an election as prescribed by Alberta Regulation No. 
170/2000. 

 
2. The modified voting procedure shall be used for the purpose of conducting 

elections pursuant to the provisions of the Local Authorities Election Act. 
 
3. This bylaw shall come into force and effect upon the date of the passing of 

the third and final reading. 
 
 
First Reading given on the  4th   day of  September  , 2001. 
 
 
“B. Neufeld” (Signed)   “E. Schmidt” (Signed)   
Bill Neufeld, Reeve    Eva Schmidt, Executive Assistant 
 
 
Second Reading given on the  4th   day of  September  , 2001. 
 
 
“B. Neufeld” (Signed)   “E. Schmidt” (Signed)   
Bill Neufeld, Reeve    Eva Schmidt, Executive Assistant 
 
 
Third Reading and Assent given on the  4th   day of  September , 2001. 
 
“B. Neufeld” (Signed)   “E. Schmidt” (Signed)   
Bill Neufeld, Reeve    Eva Schmidt, Executive Assistant 

76



BYLAW NO. 635/07 
 

BEING A BYLAW OF 
MACKENZIE COUNTY 

IN THE PROVINCE OF ALBERTA 
 

FOR THE PURPOSE OF ESTABLISHING TIMES AND 
LOCATIONS TO RECEIVE NOMINATIONS IN ACCORDANCE 
WITH SECTION 28 OF THE LOCAL AUTHORITIES ELECTION 

ACT REVISED STATUTES OF ALBERTA 2000. 
 
 
WHEREAS, Council of Mackenzie County has reviewed the nomination process as 
provided in the Local Authorities Election Act (“the Act”) and has determined that 
extending the hours and providing additional locations other than the local 
jurisdiction office to file nomination papers would enhance the election process; and 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to section 28 of the Act an elected authority may by passing a 
Bylaw establish times and locations where a Returning Officer or Deputy may 
receive nominations, 
 
NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved that the following times and locations be 
established to receive nominations for the election of Councillors of Mackenzie 
County: 
 

Nomination Day and Time 
 
1. Nomination Day must be held four weeks before the Election Day and 

the Returning Officer or Deputy may only receive nominations 
between the hours of 8:30 a.m. and 12:00 noon on Nomination Day. 

 
Locations to Receive Nomination Papers 
 
2. Nomination papers may be received at the following locations: 
 

Fort Vermilion County Office (local jurisdiction office) 
4511-46 Avenue 
Fort Vermilion, Alberta 

 
Zama County Office 
1025 Aspen Drive 
Zama City, Alberta 

 
This Bylaw shall come into force and effect upon the date of the passing of the third 
and final reading. 

77



Mackenzie County Bylaw 635/07 
Page 2 of 2 
 
 
 
 

First reading given on the 12th day of June,  2007. 
 
 
 
(signature on file)    (signature on file) 
Bill Neufeld, Reeve    Carol Gabriel, Executive Assistant 

 
 

Second Reading given on the 25th day of June,  2007. 
 
 
 
(signature on file)    (signature on file) 
Bill Neufeld, Reeve    Carol Gabriel, Executive Assistant 
 

 
 

Third Reading and Assent given on the 25th day of June,  2007. 
 
 
 
(signature on file)    (signature on file) 
Bill Neufeld, Reeve    Carol Gabriel, Executive Assistant 
 
 

78



Reason for Objection:

Ballot of  Incapacitated Elector Was Marked By Another Person:        (Check [ ] )

Reason:

Incapacitated
Elector

Objection to
Person Voting

Deputy's Initials:

am eligible to vote at the above mentioned election because:

• I have not voted before in this election;
• I am 18 years of age or older;
• I am a Canadian Citizen;
• I have resided in Alberta for the six (6) consecutive months immediately preceeding Election Day;
• My place of residence is in the Voting Subdivision or Ward on Election Day; and
• I am eligible to vote for:

Where applicable: (Check [ ] One)

Local Jurisdiction: , Province of Alberta

Election Date:

Voting Subdivision or Ward (if applicable):        Voting Station:

Chief Elected Official

Councillors

Public School Trustee

Bylaw or Question

Separate  School Trustee

FORM 8

Statement of Elector Eligibility

 Local Authorities Election Act
(Sections 47,53, 54, 59, 78)

     School Act (Section 44(4))

Voting Register

It Is An Offence To Sign A False Statement

  (Name of Elector)

MA0758 (2007/04)

A Public School Trustee

A Separate School Trustee

(Signature of Elector)

Voter Number:

Deputy Returning Officer

Ballots Issued to Elector  (Check [ ] )

Note:  The personal information that is being collected under the authority of the Local Authorities Election Act will  be used for the
purposes under that Act.  It is protected by the privacy provisions of the Freedom of Information and Protection and Privacy Act.

If you have any questions about the collection, contact
 (Title and Business Phone Number of the Responsible Official)

ofI,
(Street Address of Residence or legal land description,
 mailing address and postal code)

Identification Shown (if applicable)

Name of Candidate /Official Agent/ R.O./Scrutineer Making Objection:

79



80



Agenda Item # 13. b) 

Author: C. Gabriel Review by:  CAO YW 
 

 

MACKENZIE COUNTY 
 

REQUEST FOR DECISION 
 
 

Meeting: Regular Council Meeting 

Meeting Date: February 27, 2013 

Presented By: Joulia Whittleton, Chief Administrative Officer 

Title: 2013 Northwest Fire Conference 

 
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL: 
 
See attached letter from the Peace Regional Fire Chiefs regarding the 2013 Northwest 
Fire Conference being held on April 9-13, 2013 in Peace River. 
 
Mackenzie County has donated $500 annually towards this event.  Also, included with 
the donation are 2 complimentary tickets to the BBQ social evening at the Sawridge Inn 
and Conference Centre on April 12th. 
 
 
OPTIONS & BENEFITS: 
 
 
 
COSTS & SOURCE OF FUNDING:  
 
$500.00 – 2013 Operating Budget – Grants to Other Organizations 
 
 
COMMUNICATION: 
 
N/A 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
That Mackenzie County sponsor the 2013 Northwest Fire Conference in the amount of 
$500.00 with funding coming from 2013 operating budget. 

81



82



83



84



Agenda Item # 13. c) 
 

Author: C. Gabriel Reviewed by:  CAO YW 
 

 

MACKENZIE COUNTY 
 

REQUEST FOR DECISION 
 
 

Meeting: Regular Council Meeting 

Meeting Date: February 27, 2013 

Presented By: Joulia Whittleton, Chief Administrative Officer 

Title:  Brownlee LLP Ladies Golf Tournament 

 
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL: 
 
Brownlee LLP hosts a ladies golf tournament annually in Innisfail, AB.  This year’s 
tournament will be held on June 17, 2013. 
 
 
 
OPTIONS & BENEFITS: 
 
 
 
 
COSTS & SOURCE OF FUNDING:  
 
Per Diems, and Travel & Subsistence Costs from 2013 operating budget. 
 
 
COMMUNICATION: 
 
N/A 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
That Councillor Bateman, Councillor Wardley, and Councillor Flett be authorized to 
attend the Brownlee LLP Ladies Golf Tournament on June 17, 2013 in Innisfail, AB. 
 

85



86



Agenda Item # 13. d) 
 

Author: J. Whittleton Reviewed by:  CAO YW 
 

 

MACKENZIE COUNTY 
 

REQUEST FOR DECISION 
 
 

Meeting: Regular Council Meeting 

Meeting Date: February 27, 2013 

Presented By: Joulia Whittleton, Chief Administrative Officer  

Title:  Amalgamation of Housing Boards  

 
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL: 
 
Council appointed four Councillors to the Amalgamation of Housing Boards 
Implementation Committee.  The first, introductory meeting took place on February 14, 

2013 via teleconference. 
 
 
OPTIONS & BENEFITS: 
 
The group was informed that the High Level Housing Authority has not passed a motion 
regarding the Boards amalgamation.  AB Municipal Affairs requested that the High 
Level Housing Authority addresses the topic as expeditiously as possible so the group 
can move forward.  High Level Housing representatives expressed their wish regarding 
the new board’s first capital priority being a lodge in the Town of High Level.   
 
Subsequent to the meeting, administration requested clarification regarding the new 
board appointments post Ministerial Order approval.  Municipal Affairs representatives 
have replied that the new appointments will need to be made and these do not need to 
be the same individuals and we can have a combination of municipal councillors and 
public members.  This topic will be discussed at one of the upcoming meetings of the 
implementation committee. 
 
Please note that administration has been advised that Mackenzie Housing Management 
Board passed a motion stating that the first capital priority for the new board be a lodge 
in the Town of High Level. 
 

87



Author:  Reviewed by:  CAO  
 

 
COSTS & SOURCE OF FUNDING:  
 
N/A 
 
 
COMMUNICATION: 
 
N/A 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
That the amalgamation of housing boards update be received for information. 
 
 
 

88



Agenda Item # 13. e) 
 

Author: J. Whittleton Reviewed by:  CAO YW 
 

 

MACKENZIE COUNTY 
 

REQUEST FOR DECISION 
 
 

Meeting: Regular Council Meeting 

Meeting Date: February 27, 2013 

Presented By: Joulia Whittleton, Chief Administrative Officer  

Title:  Multi-Year Capital Infrastructure Plan – DRAFT 

 
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL: 
 
It is imperative for a municipality to establish and annually review its multi-year capital 
infrastructure plan.  This document would also be a base for a long-term financial plan 
for a municipality. 
 
 
OPTIONS & BENEFITS: 
 
Administration has been working on a draft for a few months.  Some schedules have 
been reviewed by applicable committees.   
 
Administration recommends that councillors review the schedules and provide 
feedback.  Administration will make appropriate adjustments and will bring the final draft 
for review at the last council meeting in March. 
 
 
COSTS & SOURCE OF FUNDING:  
 
NA 
 
 
COMMUNICATION: 
 
Once approved, multi-year capital plan will be reviewed annually during council budget 
deliberations.  It will be communicated to the public through the County’s annual budget 
documents. 
 

89



Author:  Reviewed by:  CAO  
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
That Councillors review the draft Multi-year Capital Infrastructure Plan schedules and 
provide feedback to administration by March 12, 2013 and that the final draft be 
reviewed at the last Council meeting in March. 
 
 
 

90



Basic Assumptions

Taxes Land Improve

Residential 2% 5%
Non-resedential

Land and improvements 2% 10%
Machinery and equipment 5%
Linear property 0%
Railway 2% 5%

Farm land 5% 5%

Mill Rate 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

Residential and Farmland Residential 1.098 1.598 7.598 7.598 1.598 1.598 7.598 7.598 1.598 7.598 1.598 7.598 7.598
Farmland 7.098 7.598 7.598 7.598 7.598 7.598 7.598 7.598 1.598 1.598 7.598 1.598 7.598
Non—Residential 11.211 11.711 11.711 1 1.111 11.711 11.711 11.111 11.711 11.711 11.111 11.711 11.711 11.111

Other Increase
Salaries and wages 6%
General expenses 4%

91



Asset Replacement Cash Flows

Description 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026

Vehicles 407,121 75,000 307,190 713,834 522,000 191,031 294,370 151,813 322,925 783,563 562,421 93,682 417,132 375,146 467,549

Equipment 1,081,553 219,862 819,879 1,526,435 990,674 535,082 562,494 2,337,502 1,626,472 910,720 958,251 2,354,777 1,774,612 208,922 798,957

Land 113,620 177,948 - - - - - - - - - - - - -

Land Improvements 283,416 721,905 100,000 300,000 350,000 200,000 300,000 200,000 200,000 - 385,000 - - -

Airports 62,262 58,340 200,000 250,000 250,000 850,000 1,200,000 250,000 1,200,000 - - - - -

Buildings 191,517 395,073 252,000 1,950,000 900,000 1,500,000 750,000 829,590 3,750,000 - - 477,041 17,257,949 - -

Bridges 333,074 742,971 472,443 350,958 364,996 531,434 394,780 410,571 597,791 444,073 461,836 672,434 - - -

Street Lights 58,943 61,301 63,753 66,303 68,955 71,713 74,582 77,565 80,668 83,894 87,250 90,740 94,370 98,144

Traffic Lights - - 200,000 - - - - - - - - - - - -

Roads

- Urban Roads 18,582 3,265,861 3,353,741 2,180,395 2,422,745 3,662,632 4,978,660 3,415,988 3,177,458 2,007,852 1,186,473 1,730,329 2,853,372 3,790,376 3,480,851

- Rural Roads 307,787 500,000 4,385,890 3,567,226 3,709,915 4,933.529 657,966 684,285 4,340,076 740,122 769,727 800,516 832,537 865,838 900,472

- Resource Roads 6,228,276 25,839,324 2,030,155 - 6,000,000 - 12,412,483 2,469,993 6,000,000 2,469,993 6,000,000 2,469,993 - 2,469,993 -

Raod drainage 390,361 750,639 520,000 540,800 562,432 584,929 608,326 632,660 657,966 684,285 711,656 740,122 769,727 800,516 832,537

Water 455,135 1,674,287 793,104 601,370 2,249,728 1,217,589 657,966 684,285 711,656 740,122 769,727 800,516 832,537 865,838 900,472

Waste 546,606 5,637,353 1,090,912 683,724 633,073 758,396 684,732 712,122 740,606 845,231 816,040 833,081 832,537 865,838 900,472

Rec Boards 273,404 599,899 200,000 208,000 216,320 224,973 233,972 243,331 253,064 263,186 273,714 284,662 296,049 307,891 320,206

Total 10,692,714 40,717,405 14,786,614 12,936,495 19,238,187 15,258,551 23,807,461 13,096,719 23,655,579 9,969,815 12,978,738 11,344,405 25,957,190 10,644,728 8,699,660

New Items (these Items are included above)
Equipment - 157,150 - - - - - - - - - 290,912 - - -

Land Improvements 283,416 721,905 100,000 300,000 350,000 200,000 300,000 200,000 200,000 - 385,000 - - - -

Airport - 7,500 200,000 250,000 250,000 250,000 1,000,000 250,000 200,000 - - - - - -

Buildings - 328,000 252,000 950,000 - 1,500,000 750,000 - 3,000,000 - - - - - -

Traffic Lights - - 200,000 - - - - - - - - - - - -

Roads 6,378,743 29,605,185 7,739,631 5,247,621 12,132,660 8,596,162 18,049,109 6,570,266 12,909,208 5,217,968 7,956,200 5,000,839 3,685,909 6,38 , 85 4,381,323
Water - - - - 2,249,728 - - - - - - - - - -

Recreational Boards - 270,000 - - - - - - - - - - - - -

6,662,159 31,089,740 8,491,631 6,747,621 14,982,388 10,546,162 20,099,109 7,020,266 16,309,208 5,217,968 8,341,200 5,291,751 3,685,909 6,386,085 4,381,323

92



2010 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12

Vehicles in use, of $5,000 or more

rr

In

r
•I.

I,

II

‘I

—I,— I,’

I,.

I.

TCA

nr.
unit Dpt Make Model

Cost (see EM.
Lo-ca- Pur Last Adjused

legends Net Cash Flow Use4ul Yr Disposal
tlon Yr

above) 116
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

Dodge JourneyR/T

Dodge JourneyR/T

Dodge R1500

Chevrolet 1500 Sllverado Truck

Dodge QuadCabl5004x4

Dodge RAM1500

Ford E-450

FORD E450

Dodge RAM2500

Dodge 2500 Crew Cab SIT

Ford Pumper Truck (1990)

GMC Pumper Truck (1991)

GMC Water Tanker (1991)

GMC Water Tanker (1991)

Dodge Ram 1500 Quad Cab 4x4

Ford E350 MCI Unit (1993)

Ford E350 Rescue Unit

Dodge Ram 1500 Quad Cab 4x4

Dodge R1500

Ford F150 1/2 ton 2wd

Chevrolet 1500 Truck

Ford F150 1/2 ton 4x4

Chevrolet 1500 Silverado 4x4 Truck

Ford F150 1/2 ton 4X4

GMC 3/4ton4x4

GMC Sierra 3/4 ton 4x4

Chevrolet Crew Cab 4x4

Dodge 1500 Quad Pickup 4x4

Dodge Quad Cab 2500 DH7H41

Dodge Rl500QuadCab4x4

Ford F150 Crew Cab 4x4

Ford F550 4x4 Reg. Cab 2.5 ton

Dodge 5,500

Ford E350 Steamer(1994)

27,230 24,107

27,230 24,107

24,618 21,733

22,763 20,199

33,433 30,393

32,925 30,846

73,501 66,745

73,963 67,207

32,640 29,262

34,775 32,589

144,000 139,891

151,200 147,249

35,184 31,074

35,184 31,074

33,219 30,058

56,000 49,157

134,874 128,143

34,185 30,897

26,900 24,977

23,145 21,435

22,763 21,053

27,250 24,686

27,199 24,635

28,561 26,190

27,942 24,697

29,990 26,998

34,481 31,361

33,512 30,224

35,328 31,908

34,450 31,410

38,381 35,342

48,978 42,755

44,909 41,786

14,153 11,588

3,123

3,123

2,885

2,564

3,040

2,079

6,756

6,756

3,378

2,186

4,110

3,952

4,110

4,110

3,161

6,843

6,731

3,288

1,923

1,710

1,710

2,564

2,564

2,371

3,245

2,992

3,120

3,288

3,420

3,040

3,040

6,223

3,123

2,564—n 10 2013

10 2022

93



2010 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12
Vehicles in use, of $5,000 or more

407,121 75,000 307,190 713,834 522,000 191,031 294,370 151,813 322,925 783,563 562,421 93,682

1,934 32 GM ltonServiceTruck IC 1998

TCA Cost (see Est
Lo-ca- Pur

unIt Dpt Make Model tlon Yr legenda Net Cash Flow Use-ful Last Adjused 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
nr. above) lIfe Yr DIsposal

60,795 52,142 10 2008 8,653 114,250

1,654 32 Dodge RAM2S0OSI/DJ7I-191 2010 32,930 29,552 10 2020 3,378 - - - - - - - - 43,745 -

1,847 32 Dodge RAM5S0O 2010 49,427 44,698 10 2020 4,729 - - - - - - - - 66,164 - -

1848a 32 Dodge RAM3500 2010 34,303 30,925 10 2020 3,378 - - - - - - - - 45,777 - -

1848b 32 2010 19,000 16,973 10 2020 2,027 - - - - - - - - 25,125 - -

1,655 32 Dodge RAM2SOOSL IC 2011 34,841 32,243 10 2021 2,598 - - - - - - - - - 47,727 -

1,657 32 Dodge RAM2500 ZA 2011 33,761 31,163 10 2021 2,598 - - - - - - - - 46,128 -

1,659 Dodge RAMI500 FV 2012 30,966 29,092 10 2022 1,874 30,966 - - - - - - - - 43,064

1,660 12 Dodge RAM15004x4 FV 2012 39,858 37,360 10 2022 2,498 39,858 - - - - - - - - 55,301

1,661 Dodge RAM1500 FV 2012 33,416 31,543 10 2022 1,874 33,416 - - - - - - - - - 46,691

1,662 26 Dodge RAM1500 FV 2012 30,976 29,102 10 2022 1,874 30,976 - - - - - - - 43,078

1,663 32 Dodge RAM2500SI4x4 FV 2012 36,691 34,817 10 2022 1,874 36,691 - - - - - - - - 51,537

1,664 41 Dodge RAM2SOOSI4x4 FV 2012 36,709 34,835 10 2022 1,874 36,709 - - - - - - - - 51,564

1,665 32 Dodge RAM1SOO LC 2012 34,176 32,302 10 2022 1,874 34,176 - - - - - - - 47,815

1,666 32 Dodge RAM1SOO IC 2012 30,186 28,312 10 2022 1,874 30,186 - - - - - - - - 41,909

1,849 32 Dodge RAM3SOO LC 2011 32,086 29,488 10 2021 2,598 - - - - - - - - - 43,650 -

1,850 32 Dodge RAMSSOO FV 2011 50,135 46,238 10 2021 3,897 - - - - - - 68,443 -

1,144 41 Dodge R1500 FV 2001 24,444 22,521 10 2011 1,923 - - - - - - - - 49,346 -

1,222 41 Chevrolet 1500 Silverado 4x4 Truck FV 2004 27,199 24,635 10 2014 2,564 - - 36,465 - - - - - - - -

1,223 41 Ford F1504x4 ZA 2005 27,278 24,812 10 2015 2,466 - - - 36,728 - - - - - - -

1,430 41 GMC Sierra 3/4 ton 4x4 FV 2003 29,725 26,733 10 2014 2,992 - - 39,572 - - - - - - -

1,432 41 Chevrolet 2500 Sierra 4x4 Truck ZA 2005 29,073 26,196 10 2015 2,877 - - - 38,777 - - - - - - -

1,433 41 GMC 2500 Sierra 3/4 ton IC 2006 30,219 27,453 10 2016 2,766 - - - - 40,637 - - - -

1,641 61 Dodge 1500 Quad Cab 4x4 IC 2005 32,672 29,384 10 2015 3,288 - - - 43,496 - - - - - -

1,224 61 Ford F-iSO 4x4 FV 2006 27,535 25,164 10 2016 2,371 - - - - 37,249 - - - -

1,225 63 Ford F1501/2ton4X4 FV 2006 28,187 25,816 10 2016 2,371 - - - - 38,214 - - - -

1,045 72 Dodge Sprinter IC 2009 59,651 56,138 10 2019 3,513 - - - - - - 83,097 - - -

1,643 72 Dodge R-1500 Quad Cab 4x4 IC 2005 32,985 29,697 10 2015 3,288 - - - 43,959 - - - - -

94



Equipment in use, of $5,000 or more

Lo-ca
Unit Dpt Make

tion
Model

Ptw Net cash Est. Lst
Year Cost flow Use- 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022ftil life Year

65,105

10,863

2023

96,371

Pressure Sealer LM5
Great Plains
Model 125
Model DP700
5160 PE900 3.0GHZ (NT Server)
Mobile Records Management
R720
T1200PS 44” DSGNJET Plotter
T1100PS 44” DSGNJET Plotter
Questica budget module
Virtual City Hall (Diamond
Municipal Solution)
MOBILE SHELVING SYSTEM
Compressor 1K12-1411-1EV
Recharge Station i-FFS-D2
Thermal Imaginery Camera
DECK OVER TRAILER
Wheel Loader, Model WA2SO-6,
Includes 4 blades.
580 5M3 Backhoe Loader
955 Tractor
5520 MAWD Mower Tractor w/
leader attachment (Unit 2407b)
541 Loader Attachment
Tractor Cr235
Rotary Vehicle Lift
Stock Trailer (Emergency
Gooseneck Trailer SWS 26’
ORTB816TA2 Utility Trailer
XH1SO0 Rotary Cutter
CX15 Flex-Wing Rotary Cutter
Snowblower 72 SB200
737 Z-Track c/w 60” Front Mount
Mower
Post Auger 6”x8”
Pickup Broom Sweeper 95 XT

Skidsteer Attachment
Angle Broom 84”
Hot Water Pressure Washer
Model# 1270 55
Portable Water Tank 2000 Gal.
Sanding Unit

13,171 -

27,371

8,421
19,521

23,070

11,664 -

28,169 -

14,853 ____________

135,024

72,974
10,357

7,020

12,292

177,683 -

19,908

30,854

18,194

17,110
9,991 ___________

9,214

95



to-ca-
Unit Dpt Maketion

Model
Ptw Net cash EeL

Cost Use- 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
Year flow Year

liii life,
2023

11,937

248,333
248,333
248,334

10,353 -

- 20,431
26,372

319,252
290,515
290,515
290,515

Sanding Unit 2000
Pro-Caster Salt/Sand Spreader
Fuel Tank 900 Gal
One-Way Grader Plow 10
TRACrORCT23S
Gravel Plow Truck
140M AWD GRADER
14GM AWD GRADER
14CM AWD GRADER
NEW CASE 5805M-3 LOADER
BOBCAT $750
2010 6430 JOHN DEERE TRACTOR
IT 9000 Sand Truck
WB109064 Gravel Truck
544H Loader w/ accessories
580 SM3 Backhoe Loader
95 XT Skid Steer
955 Tractor
4310 Tractor w/ attachments
7630 MFWD Tractor
Tractor a235
FIX15 lOft
Snowblower 78” 5B200
Snowblower Loader
Grapple Industrial Fork 78”
Aerator Model 49725
2830A Z-Trac Mower
Post Auger 6”x8” Model 1200E
84” Angle Broom
iT7F042 Sweeper
Pressure Washer Model it
HWOFPH6O-3-30-G
Pressure Washer 4.5

GPM@4000P51 2OHP c/w 50’
Generator 7.5 ONAN (1993)
Sanding Unit 2000
Car Hoist Model it SM18NOO1
14OMAWD
Forklift
IC - Airport Paving - Sweeper
14GM AWD GRADER
140M AWD GRADER
5-750 BOBCAT SKID STEER
PRESSURE WASHER

77,720

339,862
339,862
339,862

10,264

89,865

30,509

115,0

7,020
22,684

248,333
248,333

8,064

MILLER TRAIL BLAZER

14,047

- 289,857

16,319 -

- 7,401
- 7,401

290,515
290,515

11,937

339,49~

339,862
339,862

96



FV - Self contained breathing
apparatus compressor

Lo-ca
Unit Dpt Maketion

Model

Topkick Single Axle Chemical Spray
Truck (Apr 1994)
160M AWD Grader

Pur Net cash Eat. 1st
Year Cost flow Use- 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022ftil life Year

20,475
578,265

8,064

8,165

2023

Tandem Axle Cargo Trailer w/
Generator
8 ft Angle Broom Model TKH-2
Steamer
Sanding Unit 2000
Trash Pump 4” Model TSP-4K wI
16H Engine
Angle Plow 2000
Zama - Hotsy 1270 Hot Water
DIAMOND 75” HEAW DUTY
WTP (FV) Claw compressor 7.5 hp,
Air Blower at Raw Water Reservoir
Duplicated in WTP Inventory
FV WTP - Boiler! Header
Lazer Z 60” Riding Mower
Portable Water Tank 3200 Gal.
Underground Sprinkler System at

WTP site IC
Auger i-208-36’ w/ 7.5 HP Elec.
Auger i-208-46’ PTO Driven
Generator (Back-Up) KW9O
7040-SC
Sewer Flusher - Duplicated in
WTP(Wastewater) Inventory
Sewer Camera Equipment
40 Cu yd open roll-off container
c!w Dempster understructure
Quad 545 4wd, YFM3SFSMGR
6x6 Sportsman
Dock Improvements
BOBCAT 5600 TURBO YEAR 2011
TRAILER LOAD TRAIL
KUBOTA D331,’RCK6OP!GCX6OH
Mower
Mower
Heavy Construction Equipment
Heavy Construction Equipment
Heavy Construction Equipment
FV - Rescue struts
FV - Upgrade foam system on

52,339

17,622

11,937 -

12,087 -

27,522

- 10,202

- 24,726

- 7,304

- 20,431
- 80,377

46,534 -

11,423 -

14,515 -

- 72,562

209,542
209,542
209,542

16,753
16,753

233,989
99,229

118,989

18,716
18,716

97



New Equipment

2023

1s;147
17,5291

76,689~

I
I
I

I I
I I
L~J

15:0241
- 24,4241

-H44~4O7
51~809~
17,763

290,912

Lo-caUnit Dpt Makehon Model
Est.Net cash LetUse-flow Mlife\’0&

IC - Rescue struts
LC - Upgrade foam system on
IC - Self contained breathing

apparatus compressor
Photocopiers
Furniture
Distance communication
Underhood Air Compressor
LA - Fire Tanker
Transmission Flusher Pump
Trimble GeoExplorer
Commercial grade turn mower
Pintle hitch trailer for loader
Tandem axle pup trailer
Steamer trailer

34,915
2,120

10,171
7,900

318,364
4,630

51,683

15,056
11,694

6,854

- ‘ 157,150
- I

98



Land

Opt Description 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

Land Purchase from AB SRD 42,620 174,948
Lot next to FV WTP 35,000
Tompkins Waste Transfer Station 36,000 3,000

113,620 177,948

99



Land Improvements

Location Location NewIRe • D1t

La Crete Office Parking Lot Extension

La Crete Fire Hall Paving

Fort Vermilion Office Parking

Fort Vermilion Land Scaping

Zama Paving Cornerstone

Tompkins Fire Hall Land scaping

La Crete Site Development

Zama Site Development

Zama Beautification

Wadlin Lake Site Development Phase 1

Wadlin Lake Site Development Phase 2

Wadlin Lake Site Development Phase 3

Bridge Campground Development

Bridge Campground Construction Phase 1

Bridge Campground Construction Phase 2

Bridge Campground Construction Completion

Hutch Lake Development

Hutch Lake Construction Phase 1

Hutch Lake Construction Phase 2

Hutch Lake Construction Completion

Wadlin Lake Cottage Planning
Dock Improvements

181,817

23,504

53,080

17,925

7,090

283,416 S14 211

100



Airports

Dpt Description 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

La Crete Airport Development (CF)
Fort Vermilion Airport Development (CF)
Airport Instrument Approach at La Crete Airport
IC - Beacon light tower
La Crete Airport Taxi-way Paving Phase 1
La Crete Airport Taxi-way Paving Phase 2
La Crete Airport Taxi-way Paving Phase 3
La Crete Airport Perimeter Fencing
La Crete Airport Runway Overlay
La Crete Airport Instrument Upgrade
Fort Vermilion Airport Taxi-way Paving Phase 1
Fort Vermilion Airport Taxi-way Paving Phase 2
Fort Vermilion Airport Runway Overlay
Fort Vermilion Airport Instrument Upgrade
Fort Vermilion Airport Perimeter Fencing
La Crete Airport Terminal

7,500 200,00W 250,000 ‘ 250,000 250,000. .1~000,000 - 250,000 200,000, -. - -

101



Buildings

Dpt Description

CAO House Repairs 3,516
FV Office Roof repairs 110,970
Tompkins Fire Hall 16,654
FV Fire Hall roof repair 35,352
Salt and sand shelter FV 25,025
Storage shed
Arena & Community Hall (1975)
Recreation Centre (1981)
Community Hall (1982) (note: Municipal Office and Ubr
Municipal Office & Library [both In 1 traIler; trailer Is on
File Storage Trailer (1975)
Storage Shed #1(1975)
MRES/Aeromedical Building (1980)
Airport 2 Bay Shop (1975)
Airport Terminal! Storage (1980)
Picnic Shelter Bridge Campsite (1979)
Fire Hall (1980)
Storage Shed - Fire Hall
Booster Station! Repeater Station (1980)
Caretakers Cabin- Wadlin lake (1970)
Silverwood Mobile Home, model 5W20122 (2005)
Silverwood Mobile Home, model SW20112 (2006)
File Storage Trailer
FV - County office sign with flags
FV - Alarm system
P1 - Roof extension over back door
MRES/Aeromedical Building
La Crete Storage Shed - Fire Hall -

Silverwood Mobile Home - Zama (Stall 17)
Silverwood Mobile Home - Zama (Stall 1)
La Crete Library
Fort Vermilion Fire Hall
Fort Vermilion Public Works Shop
Fort Vermilion Office Extension
Swimming Pool (Indoor)
Fort Vermilion Recreation Centre Upgrades
Zama Fitness Centre
Fort Vermilion Salt Shed
La Crete Salt Shed
Blumenort Shack Replacement
Fort Vermilion Site Development
Fort Vermilion Concrete Toilets
Hutch Lake Caretaker Shack
Hutch Lake Concrete Toilet _________

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

2o2;000]
11,911

34,000] 1
I 37M00

“20,000

102



Buildings

New Buildings 328,000 252,000 950000 1--7~,OOCj

103



Bridges

* See the Mackenzie County 10 yr Bridge Forecast produced by

Genivar for a more detailed breakdown of specific projects for each
year. The 10 yr plan is subject to change due to ongoing nspecVons
and unforseen circumstances

inflation rate

Dpt BF Number DescriptIon * 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

32 multiple Construction & rehabilitation 300,000
32 multiple Construction & rehabilitation 300,000 333,074
32 multiple Construction & rehabilitation 300,000 742,971
32 multiple Construction & rehabilitation & maintenanc 420,000 472,443
32 multiple Construction & rehabilitation 300,000 350,958
32 multiple Construction & rehabilitation 300,000 364,996
32 multiple Construction & rehabilitation & maintenanc 420,000 531,434
32 multiple Construction & rehabilitation 300,000 394,780
32 multiple Construction & rehabilitation 300,000 410,571
32 multiple Construction & rehabilitation & maintenanc 420,000 597,791
32 multiple Construction & rehabilitation 300,000 444,073
32 multiple Construction & rehabilitation 300,000 461,836
32 multiple Construction & rehabilitation & maintenanc 420,000 672,434

4,380,000 333,074 742,971 472,443 350,958 364,996 531,434 394,780 410,571 597,791 444,073 461,836 672,434

104



Street Lights
4%

Location 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

Zama Electricity Poles 53,513 8,943
General 50,000 61,301 63,753 66,303 68,955 71,713 74,582 77,565 80,668 83,894 87,250

Total 53,513 58,943 61,301 63,753 66,303 68,955 71,713 74,582 77,565 80,668 83,894 87,250

105



Traffic Lights

Location 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

lOOst La Crete Traffic Lights 200,000

New

200,000

200,000

106



Roads
inflation n

Location Description Note 2015 2016 2016 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026

Urban Roads 1
La Crete

101 St & 103 Ave 18,582 100,014
101 St & 103 Ave Pave Rural Std 1,398,000
105th Ave Base Pave 271,000
91st Ave & 102nd St Pave Pathway 15,500
94th Ave Pave Recap 338,498
99th Ave Pave Urban Std 1,256,948
95th & 96th Ave Pave Urban Std 1,325,042
104th, 105th & 106th Ave Pave Rural Std 1,152,751
106th St and 97th Ave Pave Urban Std 2,700,132
103rd St Pave Urban Std 854,215
107th St & 106th Ave Pave Urban Std 1,498,007
102nd, 103rd & 104th Ave Pave Rural Std 977,787
102nd Ave Pave Rural Std 701,688
103rd & 104th Ave Pave Rural Std 1,435,280
108th St Pave Rural Std 570,691
105th & 106th Ave Pave Rural Std 1,089,917
109th Ave Base Pave 2,187,342
113th St Base Pave 2,357,583
98th St Base Pave 1,589,861
Unidentified

Fort Vermilion
53rd St & 48th Ave 128,935
53rd St & 48th Ave Pave Urban Std 630,000
48th St 47th & 45th Ave Pave Urban Std 989,285
46th Ave & 47th St Pave recap 185,261
44th Ave Pave Rural Std 170,092
River Road West Pave recap 437,061
River Road East Pave recap 1,736,941
Road to West Hill Pave Urban Std 2,438,200
46th St and 45th Ave Pave Rural Std 962,500
Unidentified 1,170,613

Zama

Aspen Drive 42,412
Aspen Drive & S curve Pave Rural Std 680,000
Beach Road & Aspen Pave Rural Std 769,010
Wildcat Ave Pave Rural Std 832,933
Pine Ave & Wolf St Pave Rural Std 889,497

107



Roads

Location

Beach Road Base Pave
Industrial Drive Base Pave
Oilmen Road Base Pave
Unidentified

Chip Seal

Total Urban Roads

inflation r;

Description Note 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

__

sooooo

694,413
1,173,031

18,582 3,265,861

131,885

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026

2,180,395 2,422,745

615,782

562,432
1,911,729

4,978,660 3,177,458

608,326

1,033,863

Rural Roads
Road Requests Existing Lands
La Crete North (River Rd) Base Pave
LC South Access West Base Pave
LC West (Riverdrive) Base Pave
LC Airport road Base Pave
IC Sand Hills road Base Pave
MA Friesen Road Gravel Rebuild
Foster Rd Base Pave
Heliport Rd Base Pave
Rocky Lane Rd Hwy58 south Base Pave
Blumenort Rd East Base Pave
HI Golfcourse Rd Base Pave

Total Rural Roads

Zama Access New Pavement
New Pavement
New Pavement
Pave recap

88 Connector New Pavement
New Pavement
New Pavement
Pave recap

657,966

1,186,473

711,656 769,727

2,067,726

2,418,947

1,911,729 ____________

4,385,890 3,567,226 3,709,915 4,933,529 657,966

Total Resource Roads

1,209,473

4,340,076307,787

3,280,525 2,719,475
6,563,700

2,947,751 4,859,249
7,013,100
4,683,800

6,228,276 25,839,324 2,030,155

6,554,645 29,605,185 9,769,785Total Roads

6,000,000

769,727

6,000,000

New Roads

6,412,483

12,132,660

___ -_- A ~

_____ ~M~1 _

6,378,743 29,605,185 7,739,631 5,247,621 12,132,660 8,596,162 18,049,109 6,570,266 12,909,208 5,217,968

12,412,483

18,049,109 13,517,534 7,956,200

7,956,200 5,000,839 3,685,909 6,386,085 4,381,323

Not New 175,902 2,030,155 500,000 608,326 740,122

108



Road Related Drainage
4%

Location 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

High Level Rural 390,361 450,639
Spruce Road 300,000
General 520,000 540,800 562,432 584,929 608,326 632,660 657,966 684,285 711,656 740,122

Total 390,361 750,639 520,000 540,800 562,432 584,929 608,326 632,660 657,966 684,285 711,656 740,122

109



inflation rate

Description 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

Zama Distribution pumphouse upgrade
Fort Vermilion Replace Chlorinator
Fort Vermilion WTP improvements/upgrades (need estimate)
Fort Vermilion WTP generator
Fort Vermilion Truck meter upgrade
La Crete replace steps at reservoir
La Crete Replace building at Wolf Lake water point
La Crete WTP generator
La Crete WTP add membrane filtration
La Crete WTP raw water truck fill upgrade
Fort Vermilion 50th St water & sewer extension

Other Assets
41 Zama Install meter risers on industrial lots
41 Fort Vermilion De-sludge raw water ponds

La Crete aquifer study and addition of wells
La Crete Hydrant replacement program

Rural water line Phase I
Rural water line Phase II

La Crete Rural waterline exptenslon to LC Sawmills
La Crete Rehab well 1
La Crete Spare well pump and motor
La Crete SCADA

General

Water

Dpt Address

I
Building I

41

New

Sub total = I-t~!~Jt~SflJ44W[!Zj~ ~kL

2249;728

- j!~~Jt1~WflJ 800,516

110



Waste

Dpt Address Description

inflation rate

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

Building
42
42

42
42
42

43

43

43 FV
43

Lift station improvements/replacement
Lift station building upgrades
Bin Replacement (2012)

de-sludge lagoon
Lagoon upgrade/expansion
teachers loop sewer trunk replacement

General

Waste Transfer Station Upgrades (fencing +

replacement of Blume shack)
Waste Transfer Station Upgrades (replacement of
shack at RL)

Waste Transfer Station Upgrades (FV/RL + 2 shacks)
Waste Transfer Station Upgrades (+ 2 shacks)
Waste Transfer Station Upgrades
Waste Transfer Station Upgrades - Zama shack

Sub total =

2012 2013 2014

(tLJj 833,081

111



Recreational Boards
4%

Location 2012 2013

FV Rec Board
LA Rec Board
Zama Rec Board
FV Rec Board
LA Rec Board
Zama Rec Board
Splash Park
Splash Park
General

Total

New

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

270,000

112



Agenda Item # 14. a) 
 

Author: C. Gabriel Review by:  CAO  
 

 

MACKENZIE COUNTY 
 

REQUEST FOR DECISION 
 
 

Meeting: Regular Council Meeting 

Meeting Date: February 27, 2013 

Presented By: Joulia Whittleton, Chief Administrative Officer 

Title: Information/Correspondence 

 
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL: 
 
The following items are attached for your information, review, and action if required. 
  

• 2014 AMSC Energy Program Roadshows  
• ABDC Biomass Securing a Sustainable Supply Session  
• Fort Vermilion Area Board of Trade – 100 Year Celebration  
• Golden Range Society – Grand Opening of High Level Seniors Centre  
• Mackenzie Library Board Meeting Minutes – January 14, 2013  
• Smoky River Agricultural Trade Show  
• La Crete Chamber of Commerce AGM  
•   
•   
•   
•   
•   
•   
•   
•   
•   
•   
•   

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
That the information/correspondence items be accepted for information purposes. 

113



From: Amanda Marshall
Subject: 2014 AMSC Energy Program Roadshows
Date: Tuesday, February 19, 2013 8:48:54 AM
Attachments: image001.png

114

mailto:AMeding@auma.ab.ca



Alberta Biomaterials Development Centre

ABDC Biomass securing a sustainable supply 
March 5, 2013
Edmonton, Alberta

Join the Alberta Biomaterials 
Development Centre (ABDC) 
to learn about securing a 
sustainable biomass supply  
in Alberta.

This event will address the biomass inventory, supply chain 
logistics, end-user needs and environmental advantages of 
creating a  biomass supply chain. This seminar will highlight 
lifecycle assessments to enhance the biomass supply chain in 
Alberta and provide the biomaterial industry with information 
regarding access to the supply chain. Biomass securing a 
sustainable supply will take place in Edmonton, Alberta March 
5, 2013    

ABDC is a unique portal that allows clients to easily navigate 
Alberta’s biomaterial expertise and capacity. We offer clients 
access to a network of expertise at facilities throughout 
Alberta that contribute to business innovation and success.

  Tentative Agenda

8 am – 8:30 am Registration & coffee

8:30 am – 9 am ABDC Introduction &  Presentation

9 am – 10 am Key note speaker 

10 am – 10:20 am Break

10:30 am – 12 pm Breakout Sessions

 A) Resource Inventory   
 B) Logistics

12 pm – 1 pm Lunch

1 pm – 2:30 pm Breakout Sessions

 A) Biomass End Users 
 B) Lifecycle Assessment

2:30 pm – 2:50 pm Break

2:50 pm – 3:45 pm Biomass challenges and opportunities –  
 Group Discussion

3:45 pm – 4 pm ABDC Insights

Date March 5, 2013 
Time 8:00 am – 4:00 pm  
Location Delta Edmonton South 
 4404 Gateway Boulevard 
 Edmonton, Alberta

Lunch will be provided, space is limited.

RSVP to  
ruth.desantis@gov.ab.ca or 403.948.8516
For more information about ABDC visit 
www.albertabiomaterials.ca

BIOMASS 
Securing a  

Sustainable Supply

albertabiomaterials.ca
115



116



117



118



119



From: Bruce & Carol Bieraugle
To: Joulia Whittleton
Subject: Golden Range Society HIgh Level
Date: Wednesday, February 20, 2013 8:48:07 PM

We want to give you and the Council a 'heads up' on the official ribbon cutting Grand Opening of the
High Level Seniors Centre so you can plan on representation there.
 
Friday, June 7 1:00 p.m. @ the HL Seniors Centre
 
We do not have a program in place as yet but will be organizing that in the coming months and will
send a Formal Invitation to you when they are available.  At present we hope to have reps from all
governments to cut the ribbon followed by an open house.  Our AGM is Feb 27 so that will mean some
board changes which may bring new ideas on the opening; however, the date will remain June 7th.
 
Anyone who is in High Level is welcome to stop by the centre between Mon - Friday 9:30 - 4.  There
are still things to do there but we are open!!
 
Will keep in touch.
 
Carol Bieraugle, Secretary, (ph 780 926-2978)
The Golden Range Society of High Level  

120

mailto:bcbier64@gmail.com
mailto:jwhittleton@mackenziecounty.com


121



122


	Request For Decision
	RECOMMENDED ACTION:
	3ai 02-12-13 Draft Council Meeting Minutes.pdf
	Minutes of the Regular Council meeting for Mackenzie County held on February 12, 2013 in the Fort Vermilion Council Chambers.

	Blank Page
	4a RFD - Delegation - Paul Noble.pdf
	Request For Decision
	RECOMMENDED ACTION:

	Blank Page
	RFD - MPC minutes.pdf
	Request For Decision
	COSTS & SOURCE OF FUNDING:
	RECOMMENDED ACTION:

	2.MPC Meeting Minutes Jan 24.pdf
	Mackenzie County
	Municipal Planning Commission Meeting
	Mackenzie County Office
	Fort Vermilion, AB
	Thursday, January 24, 2013 @ 10:00 a.m.
	1. CALL TO ORDER
	Jack Eccles called the meeting to order at 10:00 a.m.
	2. ADOPTION OF AGENDA
	3. MINUTES
	b) Business Arising from Previous Minutes
	There was no business arising from previous minutes.
	4. DEVELOPMENT PERMIT
	a) Development Permit Application 01-DP-13
	Sanjel Corporation; (Dry Cement Storage Skid)
	Plan 022 4186, Block 4, Lot 7
	MOTION 13-12 MOVED by Wally Schroeder
	That Development Permit 01-DP-13 on Plan 022 4186, Block 4, Lot 7 in the name of Sanjel Corporation be TABLED until the next MPC meeting.
	5. SUBDIVISION
	MOTION 13-13 MOVED by Elmer Derksen
	6. MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS
	7. IN CAMERA
	There were no items to discuss in camera.
	8. NEXT MEETING DATES
	9. ADJOURNMENT

	8a RFD  Bridge Campground.pdf
	Request For Decision
	RECOMMENDED ACTION:

	Blank Page
	8b RFD on Fire safety code officier.pdf
	Request For Decision
	RECOMMENDED ACTION:

	8bi Fire discipline agencie.pdf
	31Jan13

	Blank Page
	12a RFD - Water Reserve Fund 2013-02-27.pdf
	Request For Decision
	RECOMMENDED ACTION: (requires 2/3)

	Blank Page
	13a RFD - Election Bylaw.pdf
	Request For Direction
	REQUEST FOR DIRECTION:

	13b RFD - Northwest Fire Conference.pdf
	Request For Decision
	RECOMMENDED ACTION:

	Blank Page
	13c RFD - Brownlee LLP Ladies Tournament.pdf
	Request For Decision
	RECOMMENDED ACTION:

	Blank Page
	13d RFD -Housing Boards Amalgamation.pdf
	Request For Decision
	RECOMMENDED ACTION:

	13e - RFD MYCIP .pdf
	Request For Decision
	RECOMMENDED ACTION:

	14a RFD - Information-Correspondence.pdf
	Request For Decision

	Blank Page
	Blank Page

	txtJurisdiction: 
	dteElection Date: 
	txtSubdivision: 
	txtStation: 
	txtContact: 
	btnReset: 
	lblAcrobatButton: 
	btnPrintform: 


